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August 11, 2003

To: Members of the Board of Education
Citizens of the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Public School System (P3SS)
of the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CMMI) for the year ended
September 30, 2002, is hereby submitted as mandated by both local ordinances
and territorial statutes. These ordinances and statutes require that the PS§
issue annually a report on its financial position and activity and that an
independent firm of certified public accountants will audit this report,
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with
management. To the best of cur knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are
accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner that presents
fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds
and account groups of the PSS. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the PSS’ activities have been included.
The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections:
introductory, financial, and single audit. The introductory section, which
is unaudited, includes this letter of transmittal, an organizational chart, a
list of the psSs*’ principal elected and appointed officials. The financial
section includes the general-purpose financial statements and the combining
and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as
well as the independent auditor's report on these financial statements and
schedules.

The PSS is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the
provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the U. S. Office of
Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of States, Yocal Governments
and Non-Profit Organizations, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana
Islands Single Audit Implementation Act. Information related to this single
audit, including a schedule of expenditures of federal awards, the report on
compliance and on internal control, reports on compliance with requirements
applicable to each major federal pProgram, and a schedule of findings and
questioned costs are included in the single audit section of the
comprehensive annual finaneial raport.

The financial reporting entity includes all the funds and account groups of
the Public School System. The members of the Board are elected by the public
and have decision-making authority. Although the CNMI collects all taxes,
the Board determines how the school system will spend the funds generated for
schools. The CNMI cannot modify the school system's budget nor is the CNMT
entitled to share in any surpluses or required to finance any deficits of the
school system., Por these reasons, the Public School System is not fiscally
dependent on the CNMI and therefore is recognized as a primary government, as
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The school system
also receives funding from federal government sources and must comply with
the concomitant requirements of the Federal government.
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FINANCIAl, STATEMENTS

This letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with the
Management's Discussion and Analysis (pages 3-9), which focuses on current
activities, accounting changes and currently known facts.

In Cctober 2001, the PSS elected to implement change in governmental
financial reporting in accordance with GASB 34 and the Government of the
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. The format and purpose of
these changes are addressed in the notes to the financial statements, reflect
on and explain the effects and results of these changes. We believe this new
presentation will provide better information to the user of the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Public Scheool System.

GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE, ILOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITION, AND OUTLOOK

The Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands Public School System is one
comprehensive school district serving the entire Commonwealth; including the
islands of Saipan, Rota, and Tinian. The system was created through the
enactment of Public Law 6-10 in January 1988B. For school year 2001-2002, it
is serving over 10,000 students from pre-school through 1l2th grade in 12
elementary schools, 4 middle schools, 5 high schools, and 12 Headstart
Centers.

At the helm of the school system are the CNMI Board of Education and the
Commissioner. The Board consists of five voting members and one appointed
non-voting member, three members from Saipan, one member from Rota, and one
member from Tinian. The public elects the voting members, who serve four-
year terms, on an island wide basis. The Commissioner is selected by the
Board and serves as Chief Executive Officer of the system. The Board is
responsible for setting policy, while the Commissioner and the administrative
team are charged with managing the operations o©of the school system,.

A principal is charged with the responsibility of the total scheool
operations, and administers each individual school. Appropriate
instructional and support personnel, based on pupil enrollment, staff the
schools. The school principal and faculty work cooperatively with
instructional specialists and central administrative staff in developing and
implementing effective instructional programs.

The school system has over 1,000 full-time and over 150 part-time employees
and is the largest employer in the government sector. The system has nearly
550 regular classroom teachers, not including media specialists, counselors,
psychologists, etc., and allots regular classroom teachers at a
teacher/student ratioc of 1:20 for kindergarten, grades 1,2,3; 1:25 for grades
4,5,6; 1:30 for grades 7-12. Most students are assigned to and attend their
"in zone school" -~ the school assigned is based on the parent's or
guardian's home address. In some instances, an ‘out of zone'’ school may be
assigned due to over enrcllment at the “in zone’' school. Transportation is
provided for students living at least 1 mile from the assigned school.

The indigenous people of the CNMI are the Chamorro and Carolinian. The
official languages of the CNMI are Chamorro, Carolinian, and English.
English is the primary language of instruction in the Public School System of
the CNMI, Chamorro and Carolinian are taught in the Public School System as
part of a bilingual program.
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The indigenous people were conguered by the Spanish in the 16 Century, sold
to the Germans in the early 20" Century, taken by Japan in 1914 to 1944,
administered as a UN Trust territory until 1976. 1In 1976, the indigenous
people voted to become of the United States.

The Commonwealth has one of the best climates in the world, and the purest
air of any first world country. The temperature ranges from 74 degrees to 88
degrees all year round. It also boasts the most attractive tax structure of
a U.S. possession. The islands are lush with tropical jungles and scenic
beaches and dive locations. There are numerous golf courses where a local
can golf for a fourth of the cost on the Mainland.

The economy of the area is stabilized by the presence of a fairly large
garment-manufacturing complex. Tourism from Japan is also a major source of
revenue for the CNMI. The government of the CNMI is the largest employer on
the islands. With the coming changes in 2005 of the trade treaties, it is
not known what effect these treaties will have on the economy of the CNMI.
Since Japan has been in a prolonged economic slump, the tourist industry has
also been in a slump.

The guantity and quality of the instructional programs of the school system
are directly dependent on the funding provided and on effective management
and efficient use of those funds. We recognize the important trust and
responsibility we are given in the management of public resources and
continue to be vigilant and trustworthy in fulfilling that responsibility.
During the course of 2001-2002, we aggressively pursued ways to reduce costs
and improve efficiency by eliminating administrative overtime and out-of-
system travel, moving purchasing deadlines to earlier dates, and restricting
special projects that cross fiscal years. Such efforts have allowed the
school system to end the fiscal year 2001-2002 with a strong financial
position.

We believe that continuation of these financial management practices coupled
with appropriate planning should result in continued strong financial
position and provide appropriate fiscal accountability to the public and
continued improvement of programs.

PUBLIC SCHOOL SY¥STEM MISSION AND GOAL

The Public School System has adopted a mission for the school system and
goals and strategies to achieve the mission. Reaching these high standards
involves concentrated effort and determination by all employees of the school
system, The following list provides the mission, goal, strategies and
measurements.

Mission: The CNMI Public School System will educate each student to be a
responsible and productive c¢itizen who can effectively manage future
challenges.

Goal: By 2008, B0% of all students at Kindergarten through 8" grade will be
at or above grade level as measured by CNMI Standards Based Assessment and
nationally by the Stanford Achievement Test, 10" Edition.
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Strategy: Reduce the achievement gap between all students’ actual achievement
and their potential achievement.

Use the Baldrige system of continuous improvement to insure that decision-
making processes are data driven and student focused.

Redefine the magnet program so that it becomes a vehicle to help attain this
strategy.

Support the use of technolegy to aid student learning and create additicnal
time for instruction.

Mgasurement: Percentage of students in under-performing groups at or above
grade level will increase.

Strategy: Improve the district’s ability to recruit and retain a high quality
workfoxce.

Recruit and retain quality teachers whose vision, potential and abilities
support leaving no child behind.

Strive to provide an adequate compensation package for all employees,
Ensure that the school system has an adequate proof of substitute teachers.

Develop a systematic process for getting feedback from staff about Job
satisfaction, working conditions, and support systems,

Develop strategies to make more time available for teachers to teach and to
grow professionally.

Cifer +training for staff that builds their capacity to improve the
achievement of all students (i.e., diversity/poverty training; use of date;
assessment training).

Support and expand the recruitment and training of mentors.

Measurement: Decrease in turnover.

Strategy: Improve the internal and external communications within the
district.

Develop a system-wide strategic communications plan.

Develop a process for communicating to +teachers and other employees about
system initiatives.

Measurement: Community survey of school system’s publics.

VI
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Building Program

The scheool system's building program has been a high priority of the Board of
Education with over 15,000 students expected by 2010. The CNMI government
approved a $30 million bond in 1999, Two high schools and one middle scheool
were finished in fiscal year 2002. These schools added capacity for an
additional 2,200 students. Modernization plans for Rota and Tinian schools
are on an on-going basis and they are expected to be completed in calendar
year 2003.

The cost of public education in the CHNMI is financed primarily by the Gross
Receipts Tax of business owners and the Chapter II Tax of the individual.
The CNMI has a centralized tax system, and not a localized property tax
system, the CNMI Public School System allocates its $36.084 million on a per
student ratio for non-personnel expenditures. In conjunction with the $4
million federal funds, the CNMI allocates its Personnel budget on an
impartial preset staffing pattern. The local funding level for the Fublic
School System has remained flat since 1999.

The students enrolled in the Public School System have increased from 9,500
in 1998 to 10,500 in 2002, This represents a 10.5% increase in four years.
The teachers have increased from 464 in 1998 to 512 in 2002. Teachers funded
by federal funds increased from 37 teachers in 1998 to 74 teachers in 2002,
The federal funds in 2002 paid for 86 teacher aides as opposed to 51 teachex
aides in 1998. As can be seen, the increased payrecll for the additiconal
teachers and teacher aides has been financed by additional federal funds.

The Central Office staff was reduced, and additional federal funds were
obtained to finance the growth of the Public School System.

The management of the school system is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets
of the school system are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

As a recipient of federal and local financial assistance, the school system
is also responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure
is in place to ensure and document compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to these programs. This internal control structure is
subject to periodic evaluation by management.

The CNMI Public School Budget and Fiscal Control Act mandates the adoption of
an annual balanced budget resolution by July 1 each year. If the Budget is
not passed by the Legislature and the Governor, PSS operates its budgets on a
continuing resolution from fiscal year 1999. Fiscal year 2002, which begins
on October 1°%, 2001 and ends on September 30, 2002 was a budget on the
Continuing Resolutieon from 1999. The objective of these budgetary controls
is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget and in funds provided by the federal, state, and local
governments. The final budget, as continued from the fiscal year 1999, is
reflected in the financial section.
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The school system also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one
method of maintaining budgetary control. Encumbered amounts do not lapse at
year-end, they continue as outstanding encumbrances until exhausted.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial

section of this report, the school system continues to meet its
responsibility for sound financial management.

General Government Functions and Gemeral Fund Balance

The following schedule presents a summary of the budgets, using the modified
accrual basis, of the Commonwealth funds and PSS funds for the fiscal years
ended September 30, 1997 thru September 30, 2002.

Primary factors contributing to the total increase in the local and federal
funds were salaries and the related benefit costs. Positions were added to
accommodate the continued growth in enrollment. Central support costs
decreased as a percent of the total by continued reduction of costs,

Other instructional costs increased primarily due to the expansion of the
Advanced Development Institute and Headstart, and other similar programs,
established to assist all students in reaching the goals set for the school
system.

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Projects were financed by the issuance of a $15,000,000 Bond, and the
matching funds of $15,000,000 by the CNMI government. The schools finished
in fiscal year 2002 consisted of one middle school and one high school. In
2001, two elementary schools and one high school were finished. The remainder
of the $30 million is for modernization of Rota, Tinian, and Saipan physical
plants.

The capital projects are projected on a seven-year cycle. PSS is projecting
that a new elementary school be built in the As-Matuis area. Also
contemplated is a secondary school for the Marpi area. Additional classxooms
will also have to be built in the Kagman area. In addition to these major
improvements, additicnal classrooms will have to be added in most of the
Saipan schools. Rota and Tinian and the Northern Islands are also expected
to have additional buildings. This comprehensive building program is only in
the planning stage at this time. No funds for these projects have been
identified at this time. The estimated time for the completion of these
projects is fiscal year 2013.

Cash Management Policies and Practices

P5S requests drawdowns from the Federal government as the funds are expended.
PSS does earn interest income on its Federal drawdowns on the transfer delay
from Bank of Hawaii to Bank of Guam. Bank of Hawaii offers the best earnings
potential for short-term deposits. Bank of Guam is used as the bank for
transactions due to its banking relationship with the CNMI government. The
payroll for the Public School System is processed by the CNMI Finance
Department.
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The statutes authorize the Board toc invest in obligations of the United
States; obligations of any agency of the United States if payment of interest
and principal of such obligations is fully guaranteed by the United States;
that the investment is fully insured by the United States or an agency
thereof or by any mutual deposit guaranty association authorized by the
state; certain other federal agencies; and any form of investment allowed by
law to the state treasurer.

Risk Management

The CNMI government is a self-insured entity. The government has limited its
general liability to individuals to $100,000 by statute. For this reason the
government does not maintain any insurance on its buildings, or employees.

At some future date, the Public School System may insure some of its assets,
as an autonomous agency it is not regquired to follow the CHMMI's government of
self-insurance.

PSS does require performance bonds on all its building projects financed by
the government bonds.

Other Information

Independent Audit Commonwealth statutes and Federal statutes require an
annual audit to be performed by independent certified public accountants.

The firm of J. Scott Magliari & Company was selected by the Board of
Education. In addition to meeting the reguirements set forth in Commonwealth -
statutes, the audit was designed to meet the requirements of the Federal '
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as required by U. S. Office of
Management and Budget’s Circular A-133. The auditors used the generally
accepted auditing standards of the United States and the government auditing
standards as set forth in the Government Accounting Office’s Government
Auditing Standards. The auditor’s report on the general-purpose financial
statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules are
included in the financial section of this report.

IX
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IRDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Education
Public. Scheool System

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregating fund
information of +the Public School System (PSS), a component unit of the
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, as of September 30, 2002, and for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of PSS’
management. My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Goverrnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States of America. Those standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting +the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable
basis for my opinions.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the governmental activities, the
business type activities, each major fund, and the aggregating fund information
of PS5 as of September 30, 2002, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1 to financial statements, the Board adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34 on October 1, 2001.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) on pages 3 to 9 is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information
regquired by the GASB. I have applied certain limited procedures, which
congisted principally of inguiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, I did not audit this information and express no opinion on it.
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My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the PSS’ basic financial statements. The
introductory section and the combining non-major fund financial statements are
bresented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The combining individual nen-major fund have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of +the basic financial
statements and, in my opinion, is fairly stated in all material respectg in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory
section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit

of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I eXpress no opinion on
them,

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued a report
dated July 11, 2003 on my consideration of the PSS' internal control over
financial reporting and my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracte and grants. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of my audit.

AN {V\maﬂxw 4 G vepen
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands
July 11, 2003



Management's Discussion and Analysis

This section of the CNMI Public School System financial report represents our
discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Public School
System for the year ended September 30, 2002. This information should be
read in conjunction with the audited financial statements included in this
report (pages 10 to 13).

Financial Highlights

. The Board enjoyed an increased enrcllment of 518 students (or 5%) from the
previous vear.
. The assets of the school system exceeded its liabilities at the close of
the fiscal year by $5,346,961l.

The government's total net assets increased by $1,818,180 primarily due to
the increased net assets of the General Fund.
. As of the close of +the current fiscal year, the school system's
governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $23,233,103.
Approximately 75.72 % of this total amount, or $17,591,416, is available for
spending at the government's discretion.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The annual report of the Public School System consists of three components:
They are as follows: Management's Discussion and Analysis and Basic Financial
Statements and Regquired Supplemental Section.

The basic financial statements include two types of statements that present
different views of +the School System's finances. The first are the
government-wide (also called district-wide) statements. The district-wide
statements are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting and include
the statement of net assets and the statement of activities. The statement of
net assets includes all of +the CHMI Public School System assets and
liabilities. Assets and liabilities are classified in the order of relative
liquidity for assets and due date for liabilities. This statement provides a
summary of the school system's dinvestment in assets and obligations to
creditors. Liquidity and financial flexibility can be evaluated using the
information contained in this statement. The statement of activities
summarizes the school system's revenues and expenses for the current year. A
net (expense) revenue format is used to indicate to what extent each function
is self-sufficient.

The second type of statement included in the basic financial statements are
the fund financial statements, which are presented for the school system's
governmental funds. These statements present the governmental funds on the
modified accrual basis of accounting, measuring the near term inflows and
outflows of financial resources and what is available at year-end to spend in
the next fiscal year. the fund financial statements focus on the school
system's most significant funds. Because a different basis of accounting is
used in the district-wide statements, reconciliation from the governmental
fund financial statements to the district-wide statements is required. The
district-wide statements provide information about the school system as an
economic unit, while the fund financial statements provide information on the
financial resources of the school system's major funds.



The two district-wide statements report the school system's net assets and
how they have changed.

Net assets -~ the difference between the schocl system's assets and
liabilities is one way to measure the district's financial health or
position.
* Over time, increases or decreases in the school system's net assets are
an indicator of whether its financial position is improving or
deteriorating.

The district's activities are divided into two categories in the district-
wide statements:

* Governmental activities: Most of the school system's basic services are
included here, such as regular and special education, transportation,
and administration. Local funding and federal aid finance most of these
activities.

* Business-type activities: This accounts for the food service program
within the school system.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the
school system's funds, focusing on its most significant or "major" funds -
not the sachool system as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the school
system uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on
particular programs.

The Public Schools System Board of Education has two types of funds:

Governmental funds: Most of the public school system’s basic services are
included in the governmental funds, which generally focus on two things — how
cash and other assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and
the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. As a result
of this focus, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-
term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the districtr's
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-
term focus of the district-wide statements, additional information at the
bottom of the govermnmental funds statements, in the form of a reconciliation,
explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

Proprietary Funds: The Food and Nutrition Assistance Program granted by the
United States Department of Agriculture is reported in the proprietary funds.
The proprietary fund statement is reported on the same basis of accounting as
the government-wide statements — full accrual. The Public Schools System has
two proprietary funds — all enterprise funds — the Federal Program Income
Fund and the Food NWutrition Assistance Program of the Special Revenue Fund.



Financial Analvsis of the School System as a Whole

Net assets is an indicator of the fiscal health of the School System. Assets
for governmental activities exceeded liabilities by approximately $88,857,114
as of September 30, 2002. The largest component of net assets is invested in
capital assets disclosing an amount of $74,998,775 at fiscal year-end, which
comprises B4% of the total net assets.

Following is a summary of the Statement of Net Assets:

Condensed Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2002

Governmental Business-type

T

|

hctivities Activities Total

current and other assets 8,385,435 172,233 B,557,668
Amount to be provided for the

retirement of long-term debt 3,733,077 - 3,733,077
Capital improvement projects in progress 8,538,825 - 8,538,825
Capital assets, net of accumulated -
Depreciation 74,998,775 - 74,998,775
TOTAL ASSETS -5 95,656,112 _§ 192,233 _S 95,828,345
Current and other liabilities 3,065,921 179,562 3,245,483
Accrued leave liability 3,733,077 - 3,733,077
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,798,998 179,562 6,978,560
Investment in capital assets 74,998,775 74,998,775
Restricted for: -
Encumbrances 4,784,396 - 4,784,396
capital improvement projects in progress 8,511,378 8,511,378
Unrestricted 562,565 {7,329} 555,236
TOTAL NET ASSETS 88,857,114 (7,.329) 88,849,785

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS _$ 95,656,112 & 172,233 _$ 95,828,345
As this is the first year of implementation under the GASB 34 reporting
model, prior year data is not available to provide a more complete analysis.
In subsequent years, this discussion will include prior year data and a more
detailed analysis of the changes in assets, liabilities and net assets form
one year to the next.



Federal and Local Budget Review

Exhibit I

Total Leocal & Federal Funding
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As can be seen by a review of the graphs presented above, Federal funding
increased from $13 million inl1998 to $18 million in 2002. The Local funds
dropped from $42 million in 1998 to $37 million in 2002. Total funding
Federal and Local combined has remained flat for four years while the student
growth jumped from 9,246 students in 1998 to 10,522 students in 2002, This
represents a 14% increase in student enrollment. This was accomplished by
¢utting back employees in the Central Office,
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Year Total Funding Federal Funding Local Funding
Amount 3 Amount k3

1990 $29,555,215 $10,000,000 34% $19,555,215 66%
1991 35,407,990 10,000,000 28% 25,407,990 T2%
1992 41,214,621 11,000,000 27% 30,214,621 73%
1993 40,194,355 11,000,000 27% 29,194,355 73%
1994 41,214,621 11,000,000 27% 30,214,621 73%
1995 43,320,500 11,000,000 25% 32,320,500 75%
1996 43,320,500 11,000,000 25% 32,320,500 75%
1997 53,763,700 12,000,000 22% 41,763,700 78%
1998 55,100,000 13,000,000 24% 42,100,000 76%
1999 53,730,342 16,000,000 30% 37,730,342 70%
2000 53,280,342 17,000,000 32% 36,280,342 68%
2001 54,230,342 17,000,000 31% 37,230,342 69%
2002 55,230,342 18,000,000 33% 37,230,342 67%
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The contribution of Local funding to the total funding has varied between 66%
to 75% for the 12 year period from 1990 to 2002. The CNMI government has
performed very well in the maintenance of Local funding for education in the
difficult economic times from 1998 to 2002.

Exhibit 1T
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PSS has actually lowered its education cost from $5,959 per child in 1997 to
$4,909 per child in 2002. The cost per child in 1990 was 54,885 compared to
$4,909 in 2002. This cost per child was lowered by elimination of support
staff while the number of teachers and teacher aides increased as well as
their salaries.

Total governmental activities generated revenues of $12.8 million while
expenses in this category totaled $12.3 million. The increase in net assets
stands at $.5 million. Business-type activities generated revenue of $4.1
million and had expenses of $4.08 million. Net assets increase in the
business-type activities was $.02 million.

Most of PSS Capital Assets are paid for with the exception of the schools
financed in the prior five years. These schools are Dandan Elementary,
Kagman Elementary and High Schools, Sinapalo Elementary, ChaCha Middle
School, Saipan Southern High School.

These schools received their budgets from existing schools. Many of the
teachers were transferred in from other schools. However, all the general
andadministration costs of these schools were financed by reducing Central
Office and other existing schools budgets. Some of the teacher costs of
these new schools were financed by reallocating Federal funds. Under the new

@students
i enrolled

OcCost per
child
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budget rules passed by the legislature, the Commissioner of Education is
responsible spending authority. This flexibility hag enabled the Public
School System to respond to any school’s needs without the permission of the
CNMI government. The emergency repairs and maintenance of all schools is
handled by the Commissioner’s Office. An urgent reguest for a new teacher is
handled by Local transfer from another school, or by requesting the Federal
Programs Office to provide the necessary funds.

The Public School System has increased its requirements for its teaching
staff. Except for a few vocational teachers, all teachers have Bachelor
degrees. PSS is working with Northern Marianas College to provide specific
endorsements for all teachers teaching out of their field. In approximately
five years, all teachers in the system will be teaching in their specialized
field.

With the passage of the “Wo Child Left Behind” act (the largest educational
act ever passed in the USA), the Public S5chool System will respond by
continuocusly upgrading all its staff and facilities and equipment.

The Headstart Program of the CNMI has been generously supported by Local
funds. ©New sites for Headstart Centers are donated by the CNMI government.
The majority of the operating and training costs have been supplied by
Federal funds, Headstart has been upgrading its support and teaching staff
to comply with Federal policies.

The Special Education costs are primarily funded with Federal funds, however
Local funds have been provided for teachers and teacher aides. The S8pecial
Education Program is solvent, and provides the CNMI with the necessary
teachers and in addition provides the program with highly trained specialists
such as psychologists, audiologist, speech therapist, occupational and

physical therapists. Unfortunately, the retention rate for the related
specialists has not been favorable. This is due to the nationwide shortage
of the wvarious specialists. The Public School System has requested the

legislature to allow PSS to hire non-US citizens to fill these positions.

Debt Qutstanding

The Public School System does not record the debt associated with the Bond on
its balance sheet therefore, PSS has no Long-term debt, and it relies on the
CNMI government to finance any major Capital Expenditures.

Economic Factors

The Board anticipates an increased enrollment over the next several years and
will need continued increases in classroom space, teachers, and equipment.
Local funding is a major source of income for the Board therefore the CNMI
economic outlook directly affects that of the school system, The
Commonwealth two major industries, textiles and tourism have been facing
major challenges since 1998. The CHMI government has maintained and exceeded
its constitutional requirement of 15% of its total budget. It is impossible
to predict the economic outlook of the CNMI, but the Public School System has
weathered a particularly bad storm over the last five years without the
massive layoffs and deficits of many of the states in the Mainland. It has
significantly increased its physical plant in spite of the poor economy. It
has continued to teach more students with the same total payroll. Granted
the Federal funds have helped. However, the local funds provide $33 million
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and the Federal provides approximately $5 million. The Board, the
Commissioner and the staff are aware of the economie pitfalls, and are
confident they will be able to navigate through these pitfalls for +the
foreseeable future.

All of these factors, as well as the Commonwealth’s budget difficulties, were
considered in preparing the Board's budget for the 2003 fiscal year. The
Board's budget was created to maintain status quo by cutting expenditures and
reducing or eliminating services, while attempting to protect core
instructional programs and the personnel associated with them. The Board
took a proactive approach to the negative economic factors in the last
quarter of the 2002 fiscal year by freezing certain groups of expenditures,
such as travel and non- teaching personnel.

Requests for Information

This report is intended to provide a summary of the financial condition of
the public School System of the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands
Questions or requests for additional information should be addressed to:
Richard Waldo, Director of Finance.



PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2002

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from CNMI
Receivables from Federal
Other receivables
Advances, net
Due from other funds

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital improvement projects in progress
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accrued payroll and others
Vouchers payable
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Due to other agencies

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued leave liability

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Encumbrances
Capital improvement projects in progress
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

s 2,555,807 $ - § 2,555,807
4,275,497 - 4,275,497
988, 066 172,233 1,160,299
145,290 - 145,290
425,935 - 425,935
2,575,767 - 2,575,767
10,966,362 172,233 11,138,595
8,538,825 - 8,538,825
74,998,775 - 74,998,775
$ 04,503,962 5 172,233 5§ 94,676,195
$ 2,832,905 $ 4,085 s 2,836,990
75,023 - 75,023
130,833 172,233 303,066
2,572,523 3,244 2,575,767
35,564 - 35,564
5,646,848 179,562 5,826,410
3,733,077 - 3,733,077
9,379,925 179,562 9,559,487
74,998,775 - 74,998,775
4,784,396 - 4,784,396
8,511,378 - 8,511,378
(3,170,512) (7,329) (3,177,841)
85,124,037 (7,329) 85,116,708
$§ 94,503,962 3 172,233 $§ 94,676,195

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

Net (Expenses) Revenue

Program Revenues and Changes in Net Assets
Operating Business
Charges foi Grants and Government Type
Functicng/Programs Expenses Services Centributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activites:
TInstruction:
Regular $ 27,088,692 § - 8 - % (27,088,632) $ {27,088,692)
Special education 7,087,927 - 3,899,296 (3,188,631 (3,188,631,
Co-curricular 725,301 - 255,718 (469,583) (469,583)
Student services 4,445,784 - 4,445,784 - -
Total instruction 39,347,704 - g§,600,798 {30,746,908) (30,746,906)
Support services:
General administration 2,104,993 - 1,575,182 (529,811} {529,811)
School administration 4,820,095 - 690,948 (4,129,147) (4,129,147)
Other support 1,520,305 - - (1,520,305) (1,520,305)
Community 1,842,867 - 1,208,291 65,424 65,424
Individual programs 899,792 - - (899,792) (899,792)
Depreciation - unalleocated 1,142,118 - - (1,142,118} {1,142,118)
Total suppoxt services 12,330,170 - 4,174,421 (8,155,749) (8,155,749)
Total governmental activities 51,677,874 - 12,775,21% {38,902,655) (38,902,655)

Buginess—type activities:
Food services :

Total business-type activities 4,082,732 60,685 4,073,537 - 51,490 51,490
Total schpol district § 55,760,606 $60,685 § 16,848,756 (38,902,655} 51,490 (38,851,165}
Unrestricted CHMI appropriations - ope 36,830,342 - 36,830,342

Miscellaneous, unrestricted 943,255 - 943,255

Subtotal, general revenues 37,773,597 - 37,773,597

Changes in Net Assets (1,129,058) 51,490 (1,077,568)

Net assets - beginning . 86,253,055 {58,819) 86,194,276

Net agsets - ending 7 $ -85,124,037 §(7,329) $ 85,116,708

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
11—



ASBETS

ASSETS:
Cash and cash eguivalents
Receivables from CHNMI
Receivables from Federal
Other receivables
Advances, net
bue from other funds

Capital improvement
projects in progress

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accrued payroll and others
Vouchers payable
Deferred revenues
Due to other funds
Due to other agencies

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Capital Improvement projects
Unreserved:
Undesignated

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 31, 2002

12—

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

General Capital Non-major Total Governmental
Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds
2,555,847 $ - - $ 2,555,807
4,260,758 - 14,739 4,275,497
- - 988,066 988,066
145,212 - 78 145,290
195,762 - 230,173 425,935
504,414 - 2,071,353 2,575,767
7,661,953 - 3,304,409 10,966,362
- B,538,825 - 8,538,825
7,661,953 3 B,538,825 3,304,409 $ 19,505,187
2,832,905 § - - $ 2,832,905
- 27,447 47,576 75,023
67,025 - 63,808 130,833
2,071,353 - 501,170 2,572,523
35,564 - - 35,564
5,006,847 27,447 612,554 5,646,848
950,322 - 3,661,841 4,612,163
- 8,511,378 - 8,511,378
1,704,784 - {969,986) 734,798
2,655,106 8,511,378 2,691,855 13,858,339
7,661,953 5 8,538,825 3,304,409
Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported as assets in governmental funds.
The cost of capital assets is 79,645,635
Accumnlated depreciation is 4,646,860 74,998,775
Long-term liability that are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long-term at year-end pertains to:
Annual leave liability {3,733,077)
Total net assets - governmental activities S 85,124,037
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

REVENUES:
Pederal
Other Local

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES :
Current operations:
Instructional programs:
Regular
Special
Co-curricular
Student services

Supporting services:
General administration
School adminigtration
Individual programs
Other

Community services
Capital Outlay:

Egquipment & Vehicles

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND QTHER
FINANCING USES

DECREASE IN RESERVE FOR
ENCUMBRANCES

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, end of year

PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Governmental Funds

and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

General Capital HNon-Major Total Governmental

Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds
$ - - 11,508,126 11,508,126
943,255 - 1,257,900 2,201,155
943,255 - 12,766,026 13,709,281
27,088,692 - - 27,088,692
3,188,631 - 3,899,296 7,087,927
469,583 - 255,718 725,301
- - 4,445,784 4,445,784
30,746,906 - B,600,798 39,347,704
763,906 - 1,331,892 2,095,798
4,129,147 - 690,948 4,820,095
899,792 - - 899,792
1,520,307 - = 1,520,307
7,313,152 - 2,022,840 9,335,992
- - 1,842,867 1,842,867
- 840,195 — 840,195
38,060,058 840,195 12,466,505 51,366,758
(37,116,803) {840,195) 299,521 (37,657,477)
36,830,342 - - 36,830,342
(286,461) (840,195) 299,521 (827,135)
16,020 - 222,206 238,226
2,925,547 9,351,573 2,170,128 14,447,248
3 2,655,106 8,511,378 2,691,855 13,858,339

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance with the District-wide Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds S {827,135)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities is different because:

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported
in governmental funds funds as expenditures. However, for
governmental activities those costs are shown in the statement
of net assets and allocated over their estimated useful lives
as annual depreciation expense in the statement of activities.
This is the amount by which depreciation exceed
capital outlays in the period.

Capital outlays g 840,195
Depreciation expense {1,142,118) {(301,923)
Changes in net assets of governmental activities 5 {(1,129,058)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
~14-
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PUBLIC SCHOCL SYSTEM

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (GRAP Basis) and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

REVENUES
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current operations:
Instructional programs:
Reqular
Special
Co-curricular

Supporting services:
General administration
School administration
Individual programs
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financ¢ing sources (uses):
- Operating tramsfers in

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financing uses

Other changes in fund balance:
Reserve for encumbrances

Reserve for annual leave liability

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, end of year

General Fund

Variance

Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorabley
- & 943,255 § (943,255)
- 943,255 {943,255)
25,638,715 27,088,692 (1,449,977)
3,029,572 3,188,631 (159,059)
452,260 469,583 (17,323)
B26,706 763,906 62,800
5,658,176 4,129,147 1,529,029
591,544 899,792 (308,248)
956,084 1,520,307 (564,223)
37,153,057 38,060,058 (907,001)
{37,153,057) (37,116,803) {36,254)
37,153,057 36,830,342 322,715
- (286,461) 286,461
- 16,020 {16,020}
- 6,658,624 (6,658,624)
- $ 6,388,183 $ (6,388,183)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PUBLIC SCHOCL SYSTEM

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Pund Balance
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002
(Wwith Comparative Actual Amounts for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001}

2002 2001
Variance
, Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
REVENUES : 5 - % 943,255 3§ (943,255) § 2,846
Total revenues - 943,255 {943,255) 2,846
EXPENDITURES:
Current operations:
Instructional programs:
Ragular 25,638,715 27,088,692 (1,449,977) 27,320,365
Special 3,029,572 3,188,631 (159,059) 2,885,930
Co-curricular 452,260 469,583 (17,323) 420,325
Supporting services:
General administration 826,706 763,906 62,800 -
School administration 5,658,176 4,129,147 1,529,029 5,629,885
Individual programs 591,544 899,792 (308,248) 716,736
Other 956,084 1,520,307 (564,223) 561,654
Total expenditures 37,153,057 38,060,058 (907,001) 37,534,895
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (37,153,057) (37,116,803) (36,254) (37,532,049)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in 37,153,057 36,830,342 322,715 37,384,806
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financing uses - {286,461) 286,461 (147,243)
Other changes in fund balance: .
Reserve for encumbrances - 16,020 {16,020) 711,498
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year - 6,658,624 {6,658,624) 6,094,369
FUND BALANCE, end of year $ - § 6,388,183 5 (6,388,183) $ 6,658,624

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PUBLIC SCHOQL SYSTEM

Statement of Net Assets
Enterprise Funds - Food and Nutrition Program
September 30, 2002

ASSETS

Current assets:

Due from grantor agencies $ 172,233
Due from other governments -
Total current assets 172,233
TOTAL ASSETS 3 172,233
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accrued payrell and others - . $ 4,085
Deferred Revenue 172,233
Due to other funds 3,244
Total current liabilities 179,562
TOTAL. LIABILITIES 179,562
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (7,329)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 172,233

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEHM

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Enterprise Funds - Food and Nutrition Program
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

OPERATING REVENUES
Food sales ' 8

TOTAL, OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Business supporting services:

Salaries 339,778
Supplies 252,962
Contractual services 3,343,769
3,936,509

Other supporting services:
Employee benefits 90,657
Indirect costs 55,566
146,223
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,082,732
OPERATING LOSS (4,082,732)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES:
Federal regular USDA grants 4,073,537
Miscellaneous 60,685
TOTAL NON-OPERATING

REVENUES 4,134,222
NET INCOME 51,490
NET ASSETS, beginning of year (58,819)
NET ASSETS, end of year 5 (7,329)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-18-
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statement of Cash flows
Enterprise Funds ~ Food and Nutrition Program
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:
Payments to employees for services
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments for other operating expenses

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Federal regular USDA grants

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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{339,778)
(3,596,731)
(197,713)

(4,134,222)

4,073,537

4,073,537

60,685

60,685




PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Combining Balance Sheet - Non-major Funds

September 30, 2002

Federal Local CHMI Indirect
Grants Donations Grants Costs
ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Accounts receivable § - % -  § 14,73%  § - 14,739
ther receivables 239,173 78 - - 230,251
bDue from grantor agencies 918,839 17,064 - 52,163 988,046
Due from other funds - 530,833 247,588 1,292,932 2,071,353
s 1,149,012 5 547,975 § 262,327 § 1,345,095 3,304,409
LIABILITIES AND FUND BATANCES
Liabilities:
vVouchers payable $ 47,576 § -~ 5 - 3 - 47,576
beferred Revenue - 63,808 - - 63,808
bue to other funds 501,170 - - - 501,170
Total liabilities 548,746 63,808 - - 612,554
Fuand balances (deficit):
Reserved for encumbrances 3,661,841 - - - 3,661,841
Unreserved (3,061,575) 484,167 262,327 1,345,095 (969,946
Total fund balances 600,266 - 484,167 262,327 1,345,095 2,691,855
g 1,149,012 3 547,975 $ 262,327 § 1,345,095 3,304,409

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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l FPUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Ba lance
l Hon-major funds
For the Year Ended September 3G, 2002
I Federal Local CHNMI Indirect
Grants Donations Grants Costs Tatal
Fund Fund Pund Fund Hon-major funds
REVENUES :
Federal § 11,517,321 § ~ 3 - § - 3 11,517,321
other Local - 47%,15% - 778,741 1,257,500
TOTAL REVENUES 11,517,321 479,159 - 778,741 12,775,221
l EXPERDITURES :
Current operations:
Instructional programs:
l Regulax ; - - - ;
Special 3,899,296 - - - 3,899,295
Co-curricular 255,718 - - - 255,718
Student services 4,445,784 - - - 4,445,784
' 8,600,798 ~ - - 8,600,798
Supporting services:
. General administration 317,242 428,175 - 5B6,.435 1,331,892
Bcheool administration 690,948 - = - 690,948
Individual programs - ~ - - -
Other - - = - -
1,008,230 428,175 - 586,435 2,022,840
Community services 1,842,867 - - ~ 1,842,867
Capital Ountlay:
l Equipment & Vehicles - ~ - - -
I TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,451,895 428,175 - 586,435 12,466,505
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 65,426 ' 50,984 - 192,306 308,716
l OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) s
Operating transfers in - ind - ~ -
l EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND CTHER FINANCING SQURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
I FIRANCING USES ' 65,426 50,984 - 192,306 108,716
DECRERSE IN RESERVE FOR
ENCUMBRANCES 222,208 = - - 222,204
I FUND BALANCE, beginning of ysar 312,634 433,183 262,327 1,152,789 2,166,933
I FUND BALANCE, end of year 5 600,266 3 484,167 § 262,327 5 1,345,095 s 2,691,855
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
l ~21-
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Public School System (PSS), a component unit of the Commonwealth of the
Northern Mariana Islands (CBMI)}, was established as a public non-profit
corporation by the CNMI Public TLaw 6-10 {The Education Aact of 1988),
effective October 25, 1988, and began operations on October 1, 1988.

PSS financial statements are prepared 1in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted 4in the United States of BAmerica. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is regponsible for
establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its Pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations).

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {(GASB) unanimously
approved Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. Certain of the
significant changes in the Statement include the following:

®* For the first time the financial statements include:

1. A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an
analysis of the PSS’ overall <financial position and results of
operations,

2. Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all
of the School System's activities, including infrastructure.

®* A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.

A. Reporting Entity

The PS8, as the state educational agency for pre-school, elementary and
secondary educations programs in the CNMI is under the direction of the Board
of Education (BOE), which consists of five voting members elected at-large on
a nonpartisan basis: one from Rota, one from Tinian, and three from Saipan.
The Commissioner of Education, who is appointed by the Board of Education, is

responsible for administering the PSS in accordance with applicable laws and
Board policies.

Pursuant to CNMI Constitutiocnal Amendment 38, the public education school
system is guaranteed an annual budget of not less than fifteen percent of the
general revenues of +the CNMI. This budgetary appropriation may not be
reprogrammed for other purposes, and any unencumbered fund balance at the end
of a fiscal year shall be available for reappropriation.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of
Activities present information ahbout the PsSs. These statements include the
overall financial activities of the school system. Eliminations have been

made to minimize the effect of internal activities upon revenues and
expenses,
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYS5TEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

B. Basis of Presentation, Continued

These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type
activities of the Ps3s. Governmental activities generally are financed
through intergovernmental revenues and other non-exchange transactions.

Business type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the different business-type activities of the P3S and
for each function of the PSS’ govermnmental activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect
expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for
the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and chargss
paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues +that are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues.

PS5 uses funds and an account group to report on its, financial position and
the results of its operations in conformity with standards of fund basis
accounting for local governments promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and
accounting entity, with a self-balancing sets of accounts, recording cash
and/or other financial resources together with all related liabilities and
residual equities and balances, and changes therein which are segregated for
the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain
objectives in accordance with the fund’s special requlations, restrictions or
limitations. The fund financial statements provide information about the Pss
funds. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental
and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.

PSS reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund - Accounts for all financial resources except for those
required to be accounted for in another fund. 'Phe General Fund is the

PS5’ major operating fund.

Capital Project Fund - Accounts for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of all major governmental projects.

Non-major Funds — Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditure for specified burposes. This was

previously reported as Special Revenue Funds.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

L1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

B. Basis of Presentation, Continued

The Commissioner of Education has directed that indirect costs of the
general fund expended for federal grant activity be accounted for in
non-major fund and be used for particular bPregrams and activities.

The PSS reports the following major enterprise fund:

Food and Nutrition Aséistance Program — The Food and Nutrition Program is
used to account for the food service program within the school system.

€. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accountin
=e ctoopRLEMENL Ffocus and Basig of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers +o the timing of recognition, that is, when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the a&ccounts and reported in the
financial ' statements. Basis of accounting relates +to the timing of the
measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Government-wide and Proprietarv Fund Financial Statements

Both governmental and business type activities in the statement of net assets
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the acerual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related
cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the PSg gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving} equal value in
exchange, include grants and donations. Revenue from grants and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied. )

Government Fund Financial Statements
=QVernment rFund Financial Statements

The governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable”
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the
related liability is incurred.

Revenues from other scurces are recognized when received. Expenditures are
generally recognized in the fiscal year the goods or services are received
and the related fund liability is incurred. Debt service expenditures for
principal interest on general long~-term obligations are recognized when due
unless resources have been provided for payment early in the subsegquent
fiscal year. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as current
fiscal year expenditures, rather than allocating cost to the fiscal year when
items are used,
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes teo the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

113 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

€. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accountindg, Continued

Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absences and employer
retirement contributions are reported as the amount accrued during the fiscal
year that normally would be ligquidated with expendable available financial
resources. Budgetary encumbrances are not reported as expenditures.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the PSS funds certain brograms by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues.
Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and
unrestricted net assets available to finance the program.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the
Board follow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November
30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with Gash pronouncements,

The PSS has implemented caSB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements -
and Managements Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments and
related standards. These new standards provide for significant changes in
terminology and presentation and for the inclusion of Management’s Discugsion
and Analysis as required supplementary information.

D. _Budgetarv Data

PSS has no authority to impose taxes to generate revenue. PSS ig a dependent
school district as revenue and expenditure authorizations come from the CNMI
Legiglature. The CNMT legislative budgets are adopted on a basis consistent
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. An annual appropriated budget is adopted by the Legislature for pss
through an Annual Appropriations act. Budgets for non-major funds are not
included in the annual appropriation act. Budgets for these funds are based
upon grant awards received (and are thus non-appropriated). Project~length
financial plans are adopted for all capital project funds.

E. Assets, YLiabilities, and Fund Equit
TRy ol Lle8, anag Fund Equity
1. cash and cash equivalents

The PSS pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and
investments to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and
investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and
cash equivalents.

2. Capital Assets

PSS’ capital assets are recorded at original cost. Donated assets are
recorded at their estimated fair wvalue at the date of donation or
forfeiture. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the

remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity, Continued

2. Capital Assets, Continued

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or
more are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost.
Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that
significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation on all assets is Provided on the straight-line basis over
the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20~-50 vears
Others 8 vears

3. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other

long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities. '

4. Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be ligquidated
with expendable available financial resources is reported as expenditure
and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Amounts
of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as
a4 non-current liability. The liability as of September 30, 2002 is
$3,733,077. ©No expenditure is reported for these amounts. No liability

is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay
benefits.

An employee cannot carry over to the following calendar year accumilated
annual leave in excess of three hundred sixty (360} hours, However, any
annual leave accumulated in excess of 360 hours as of the end Gf the

calendar year can be converted to sick leave on the last day of such
calendar year.

5. Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net assets in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements are classified as invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of federal agencies,
or imposed by law through state statute.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

{1} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

E. Assets, Liabilities,

and Fund Egquity, Continued

5. Net Assets/Fund Balances, Continued

In the governmental fund financial

restrictions of fund balance tepresents  amounts that

appropriable, are legalily Segregated for a specific
restricted by the grant

Statements, reservationg or

are not
purpcse, or are
agreement. Designations of fund balance
nt plans that are subject to change,

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

any commitments related to
unperformed at year-end.

Unreserved — portion of total fund balance available for appropriation,
which is uncommitted at year-end.
12) Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

A. Explanation of ce
sheet _and the governme

rtain differences between the dovernmental fund balance
nt-wide statement of net assets.

sets - governmental activities
in the government-wide statement of net assets, The net

$ 71,265,698 consists of several elements asg follows:

as reported
adjustment of

Description

Amount

Capital assets used in governmental
activities are net financial resources and
are therefore not reported in the fundsg
(total capital assets on government-wide
statement in governmental activities column)

5 79,645,635
less accumulated depreciation

(_ 4,646,860)

74,998,775

Net capital assets

Liabilities that, because they are not due
and payable in the current period, do not
require current resources to pay and are
therefore not recorded in the fund statements:
Annual leave liability

( 3,733,077)
S 71,265,698

Total adjustment
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes +to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

(2) Reconciliation of

Government-wide

and  Fund Financial Statements,
Continued

B, Explanation of  certain differences between +he Jovernmental fupg
Statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes
t of activities

in fund balance and the
government-wide statemen

The governmental statement of revenues, expenditures

balances includeg 35 reconciliation between net changesg
total governmental funds and changes in net assets

88 reported in the government-wide statement of

and changes ip fund
in fund balances -
of governmental activities

activities. The total
adjustment of $301,923 pertains to the following:
Description Amount

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the
Statement of activities,

s 840,195
Depreciation eXpense,
assgets over their use
on the statement of a
fund statements.

the allocation of those
ful lives, that is recorded
ctivities but not in the

( 1,142,118)
L8 301,923

Total adjustmentsg

(3} Detail Notes on all Funds

-28-
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

{3] Detail Notes on all Funds, Continued

Accounts Receivable
SEcOUnts Receivable

Accounts receivable are amounts due primarily from the CNMI government and
from Federal grantor agencies.

Receivables at the govermment-wide level at September 30, 2002,

were asg
follows:
Due from other
Funds (internal Accounts
Balances) Receivable Other
Governmental activities:
General Fund
Other governmental 3 2,575,767 5 4,260,758 $ 1,002,805
activities 8,538,825 - -
Total

3 11,114,592 $__ 4,260,758 g 1,002,805

School Food services s

Business~type activities:

= 2 = § __ 172,233

Travel Advances
sravel Advances

The Board of Education’s policy considers travel advances as loan to the
traveler until Proper reconciliation of approved travel expenses has been
authorized. Travel advances are ligquidated upon submissio

n of required travel
documents in accordance with psg- policy.
Travel advances are teported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of
$119,219 at September 30, 2002.
-20-
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30, 2002

{3} Detail Notes on_all Funds, Continued

Capital Asgets

Capital asset activity for the Year ended September 30, 2002, was as follows:

Governmental activities
==fernmental activities

Capital asset not being depreciated;

Land

Total capital assets not
being depreciateqd;

Capital assets being depreciated:;
Buildings
Others

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Others

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets
being depreciated,
net

Governmental activity capita)
assets, net

Retirement Plan
==Llrement Plan

PSS contributes to the Northern Mariana Islands Retirement Fund {NMIRF),
defined benefit, cost~sharing multi-employer Pension plan established ang

administered by the cCNMT.
benefits to
instrumentalities
dependents .
credited service.
service.

is at least 52 years of age.

25 years of vesting service,

Public Law 6-17, the Northern Mariana Islands Retirement Pund Act of 1988
the authority under which benefit provisions are established

employees of

and public
Benefits are based on the average annual salary over the term of
Generally, benefitsg vest after three Years of credited
For early retirement, after 10 years of vesting servige and members

Beginning Ending
balances Increases Retirement balances
$36,647.850 & - £ - £36,647.850

36,647,850 —_— - —_ - 36,647,850

14,229,050

25,138,234 - 39,367,284

2,790,306 40,195 = 3,630,501
17,019,356 25,978,429 - - 42,997,785
2,561,229 787,346 - 3,348,575
943,513 354,772 - 1,298,285
3,504,742 1,142,11 - - 4,646,860
13,514,614 38,350,925
£30,162,464 874,998,775

NMIRF provides retirement, security and other
the CNMI government and CNMI agencies,
corperations, and +to their spougeg and

Members, who retire at or after age 60, or with

A5 a result of the Fund’s actuarial valuation report {(as of October 1, zoo0y,
it has been determined that for the year ended September 30, 2001, the

ver is 34.6% of covered payroll, ang funding

e 6.5% and 9.0% of Covered payroll for Class I

and Clasg IT members, fespectively.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

3. Detail Notes on all Funds, Continued

Retirement Plan, Continued

liability over a pPeriod not to exceed 40 years from October 1989,
Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements
are the same as those used to compute the pension benefit obligation.

entry age normal cost~
with actuarial assumptions used to compute the pension benefit obligation as

follows: (a) a rate of return of 7.5% per year on the investment of pPresent
and future assets, (b) a 5% increase in employee salaries compounded annually
until retirement, (¢) expenses at 1.1% of total payroll, and (d) retirement
age of the earlier of age 62 and 3 years of vesting service (not including 5
additional years granted after 20 years of service) for Class I or age 60 and
25 years of service for Class II members (including 5 additional years
granted after 20 years of service).
Required contributions and the percentage actually contributed for +the
current year and for the preceding two years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Required Percentage of Required
Fnded Contribution Contribution Contributed
9/30/02 3 6,090,507 100%
9/30/01 7,261,530 100%
9/30/00 7,248,747 100%

Medical and 1ife insurance benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the CNMI Government also ensures
that employees are provided with medical and 1life insurance benefits, The
CNMI Government created the Group Health and Life Insurance Trust Fund
{“Trust Fund”), held in trust and administered by the NMIRF. PSS contributes
to the Group Health and Life Insurance Program. This is open to active
employees who work at least 20 hours per week and retired CNMI government
employees who retire ag a result of length of service, disability or age, as
well as their dependents, Further, these eligible peérsons must have elected
to enroll during the pPeriod permitted in the Emergency Regulationg adopted on
September 6, 1995, Life insurance coverage is to be provided by a private
carrier, Contributions from employees and employers are based on rates as
deternined by NMIRF Board of Trustees. Employee deductions are made through

31
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resources for eligible purposes. Substantially,
either the Federal Single Audit Act or to financia
the grantor agencies of tha Federal government or their desig

PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

3. Detail Notes on all Funds, Continued

Grants

Federal grants and assistance awards from various fed
the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as rev
occurs. Federal reimbursement—type grants are recorde
related expenditures or expenses are incurred.

ITransfer in from CNMI_Government

In accordance with Public Law 10-34, the CNMT

$37,230,342 for PSS’'s operational use for the year ended September 30, 2002.
The amount actually received in cash and/or services was $36,830,342 ang
$4,260,758 was receivable at September 30, 2002,

government appropriated

Non-major funds

Special Revenue Funds, A
summary of PSS's Non-major Funds as of September 30, 2002 follows:

Federal Grants Fund ~ This fund accounts for activities pertaining to

federal operations grants. The Primary revenue
source of this fund is grant awards from
various federal agencies.

Local Donations Fund - This fund accounts for activitiesg pertaining to
local donations received for specific burposes,
The primary revenue source of this fupnd jis

donations from private individuals or
erganizations.

CNMI Grants Fund - This fund was e@stablished +to account for
=0l Grants Fungd

projects that were appropriated without fiscal
year limitation by Public Law 8-2,

Indirect Costs Fund -~ This fund, established through directive of the
P38 Commissioner of Education, accounts for
indirect cost of psg related to federal grants.

(4) Contingencies

The PSS administers significant financial assistance
government in the form of grants and entitlements, Receipt of grants is
génerally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant
agreements and applicable federal regqulations, including expenditure gf

all grants are subject to
1 and compliance audits by
nees.

from the Federal
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general obligation bonds for a total value not to exceed $15,685,000
bonds shall pe used to leverage an equal amount of federal
improvement project funds to finance school construction
be repaid by the onMT Government through appropriation of

Per Public Law 11-14. The liability relating to these bonds
by the cnMI Government .

PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

14y Contingencies, Continued

As of September 30, 2002, expenditures in the amount of $121,628 and various
amounts for which g value cannot be determined have been questioned ag 4
result of Single Audits in fiscal years 1997 through 199g,

Disallowances ang Sanctiong as a result of these audits
liabilities of the PSS and the general fund would be liable for th
such funds. However, no liability which may arise from the ultim

of this matter has been provided for in the
Btatements,

may become

PS8 is a defendant in 4 several legal lawsuits

that pertains to the
followings:

1. Tano Group Inc v. the Public School System
This is g construction dispute over Tano‘s construction of the
Sinapalo elementary school on the island of Rota. A summary
judgement wag issued against +the Public School System but o
decision hag Yet been issued on the amount, Both parties are
hegotiating a finpal dollar amount. The  financi
settlement are subject to a confidentiality agreement, however, the
settlement will not have &8 material effect on pgg’ financial
condition or results of operations. More +than half of  the
settlement amount will be paid by federal and bond
designated for the project.

2. Darcie Duepas v. Myung B. Chua and the Public School Svstem

This is a personal injury case filed by a student injured by a car
at San Antonio elementary school. This case was filed against Pss
in September 2003, An assessment is not Yet complete. pgg intends
to vigorously defend itself in the case, but if settlement is
reached, the reasonable estimate of the loss is not expected to have
& material effect on psg:’ financial statements.

3. Century Insurance Company v. Guerrero Brothers, Inc and PSS,
This is & construction lawsuit regarding Guerrero Brothers
construction of the Tinian High School. An assessment by the
current PSS Legal Counsel of the liability Surrounding the case is
not complete, PSS will vigorcusly contest liability to any of the
remaining parties and believes the likelihood of loss is remote,

10-36 authorized PS8 to issue
- These

capital
Projects, and will

-33-
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PUBLIC SCHCOOL SYSTEM

Schednle of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants Fund
Year Ended Septenber 30, 2002

Receivable Receivable
From From
- Grantor Grantor
Program {Deferred Lash {Daferrad
Pederal Grantor/Program/ Org. or Award Revenue} at Recelipts Expenditures Revenua) at
Title/Federal CFpA Number No. Emount 09/30/01 adjustments FY 02 FY 02 3%/30/02
D.38, Department of Edycation
Direct Programs
CFDA# 84.3303
Advance Placement Program 0156 5 107,460 § 244 $ (244} $ - § - $ -
Advance Placement Program 0157 - (3,933) 1,934 (19,364) 19,364 1
Advance Flacement Program 0257APP2 - - 1 (19,340) 13,340 1
Subtotal CFDA# 64.3308 $ 107,460 $ {3,689) $ 1,691 £ (38,704) ] 38,704 $ 2
CPDAE £4.194Q
Bilingual Data - SEA 0072 $ 100,000 L - ¥ - 5 - H - § -
Technical Assistant Section 11 0073 - {7,205} 7,205 - - -
Bilingual Data - SEA 0172 - 1,726 (7,726) - - -
Technical Assistant Section 11 0173 - 3,195 (3,195) (14,604) 14,804 -
Bilingual Data - SEA 0272BIL2 - - (293} [23,245) 23,246 (293)
Technical Rsaistant Section 11 0273BIL2 - - 3,640 (76,754} 76,754 3,640
Bubtotal CFDA¥ B4.1%34Q $ 10¢,000 5 3,716 $ [369) 3 {114,804} s 114,804 $ 3,347
CFDAY B4.31BX
Technology SEA 4053 $ - ] {500) § 500 $ - $ - § -
Technology LEA 0659 - - - (11,810) 11,4810 -
Technology LEA 0359RCO1 - - - (3,773) 3,775 -
Technology ILEA 005%AC02 - - = (12,200) 12,200 -
Tachnology SERA Q059AD01 - - 5,438 - - 5,438
Technology LEA Q059BM01 - - - (19,000 10,000 -
Technology LEA 0D5SBMO2 - - - {10, 000) 10,000 -
Technology LER 0059FCO1 - - - {13,000) 13,000 -
Technology LER 0059GS0L - - - 16,260) 6,260 -
Technology LER 00593501 - - - {13,B00) 13,800 -
Technology SER 00597802 - - - {18,830) 10,830 -
Technology LEA 0059JV01 - - - {14,500) 14,508 -
Technology LER 0059JV02 - - - {14,500) 14,500 -
Technology LEA 0059JV03 - - - {14,687) 14,697 -
Techniology LER DOS9IKEOL - - - {6,260) 6,260 -
Technology LER DO59MMO1 - - - {13,800) 13,800 -
Tacknology LER 0059MYGL - - .- (12,440) 12,440 -
Tecknology LEA COSYRSOL - - - (4,820) 4,820 -
Technology LEA C0595G0L - - - (13,800) 13,800 -
Technology LEA G059TBOL - - - (13,800) 13,800 -
Tachnology LEA 0059Vac1 - - - {6,260) 6,260 -
Technology SEA 0158 - - {798) (11,884} 11,884 (799)
Technology LEA 0159 - - (5,844) (6,306} 6,906 (5,844}
Technology LEA 0159AL01 - - 631 (9,400} 3,400 631
Technolegy LEA 01598501 - - 558 (10,720) 10,72¢ LY:t:]
Technology LER 0159A502 - - 16 (9,566) 9,566 16
Technology LEA 0159DBO1 - - - (2,924} 2,934 -
Technology LEA 0159DH0) - - - (7,c000) 7,000 -
Technology LEA 0159EH01 - 5,371 (3,371 - - -
Technology LEA 0159EHO2 - - 11,797 (13,696) 13,696 11,797
Technology LEA 0159JM02 - - - (11,420} 11,420 -
Technolegy LEA 0159Jv01 - - - (4,540} 4,540 -
Technology LEA 0159J801 - - - (14,472} 14,472 -
Pechnology LEA 01597502 - - - (42,412} 41,412 -
Technology LEA 0159MC01 - - - (3,945) 3,945 -
Technalogy LEA 0159RLG2 - - 4,112 [4,738) 4,736 4,112
Technology LEA 8159SM0L - - - {10,950) 10,950 -
Technology LEA 01597501 - - - {10, 000) 10,000 -
Subtotal CFDA# B84.318X s - 5 4,871 § 11,033 $___(380,133) 380,133 $ 15,910

34—



PUBLIC SCHOOQL SYSTEM

Federal Grants Fund

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

I Year Ended September 30, 2002
Receivable Receivable
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program {Ceferred Cash {beferred
Federal Grantor/Program/ org. or Award Revenue) at Receipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federal CFDA Number No. Amount 09/30/01 Adjustments F¥Y 02 FY 02 09/30/02
I U.5. Depariment of Education
Direct Preoqrams
CFDAR 84.276A
' Goals 2000-1 2762 $ - $ - 3 - 3 - $ - $ -
Goals 2000-2 2763 - {3,874} 3,874 - - -
Goals 2000-1 SEA 2962 - 3,083 {2,%22) - - 157
Goals 2000 - LEA 2963 - 24,206 {24,206) (4,854} 4,854 -
Goals 2000 - LEA 2963AL - - - (1,778} 1,778 -
Goals 2000 - LEA 2963EW2 - 299 - - - 299
Goals 2000 ~ LEA 2863FU - 724 (724) - - -
Goals 2000 - LEA 2963KB - - - 16,360) 6,300 -
Goals 2000 - LEA 2963PT - (6,423) - - - (6,423)
Goale 2000 - LEA 2963EM - 2,135 - - - 2,135
Goals 2000 - LEA 2963081 - - - (4,251) 4,251 -
Goals 2000 - LEA 2963M81 - - - (6,113) 6,113 -
Goals 2000 ~ LEA 2963PT2Z - 3,822 - - - 3,822
Goals 2000 - LEA 29637T1 - - - {7,100) 7,100 -
l Goals 2000-1 SEA 0062 - - 565 19,217) 9,217 565
Goals 2000 - LEA DO63 - - 2,189 (2,189) 2,189 2,189
Goals 2000 - LEA 0063E01 - - 2,174 (31,285) 31,285 2,174
Goals 2000 — LEA DO63FHL - - 178 {2,652) 2,652 178
Goals 2000 — LEA 0063FTL - - 475 17,975) 7,075 475
Goals 2000 ~ LEA 00630B1 - - 7,321 {7,321) 7,321 7,321
Gaals 2040 - LER DO63HML - - 7,600 {7,600} 7,600 7,608
Goals 2044 - LER 0063IV1 - (5,715) 13,938 {15,843) 15,843 8,223
Goals 2000 - LEA 0063KP1 - - 130 (1,941) 1,941 130
l Goals 2000 - LEA 2063LB1 - - 1,373 (240,448) 20,448 1,373
Goals 2000 - LEA Q063MG1 - - 247 (4,272) 4,272 2487
) Goals 2000 - LEA 0063MN1 - (7,100) 7,262 (2,408) 2,408 162
Goals 2000 - LEA ap6aTs1 - - 40 (589) 599 40
I Subtotal CFDA¥ 84.276A 3 - § 11,163 § 19,554 § (143,236) 5 143,236 $ 30,717
CFDAf 84.922h
Strategies 1 5901 § 4,868,486 § 1 § &9 $ - $ - $ -
I Strategies 2 5902 - 16,384 {16,384) - - -
Strategics 3 5903 - 1 (1) - - -
Strategies 4 5904 - 2,405 (2,405) ~ - -
Strategies 5 5905 - 36 [56) - - -
bDrug Free 5907 - 1 (2} - - -
Consolidated EIE 5909 - 17,143 (17,143 - - -
Consolidated Personnel 5919 - 1) 1 - - -
EIE - pandan Elementary School 5909A1 ~ (14%) 149 - - -
RIE - (race Chriaitian Academy 590982 - (6,617} 6,617 - - -
EIE - Joshua Generation Academy 5909B4 - (6,439} 6,439 -~ - -
g EXE - Mount Carmel Schaol 590986 - {206} 906 - - -
ETE - Saipan Community School 5904R7 - {399) 398 - - -
EIE - San Francisco De Borja 550988 - (1,459) 1,050 - - -
ETE - Saipan International School 5908814 - (655) 655 - - -
EIE - Whispering Palms School 5909812 - (928) 928 - - -
EIE - PSS 5909p55 - {2) 2 - - -
Strategies 4 - San Vicente School 59045V8 - {2,460) 2,460 - - -
strategies 1 - SE 00018E - 485 (485} - - -
Strategies 5 - CSA 0005CEA - 629 (629) - - -
DF - Hopwood High School 00C7A4 - 5,13% 12,13%) - - -
DF - Roblerville Elementary School 00C7AS - {538} 338 - - -
DF - Marianas High School 0007AE - - - {25,191) 25,191 -
EIE - Garapan Elementary School 000982 - - - {1,042) 1,042 -
EIE ~ Hopwood Juniocr High School G0OSA4 - - - {21,865) 21,965 -
I. EIE - Koblerville Elementary School Q009RS - 385 {385) - - -
EIE - Grace Chrisitian Saipan an098a3 - 83 (83) - - -
EIE - Grace Christian Tinian 000985 - 6,600 (6,600) - - -
EIE - PSS a009PSS - 11,865 {11,865} (28,2486) 28,246 -
EIE ~ CIA 00092 - - - [56,595) 56,595 -
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants PFund
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Receivable Receivable
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program {peferred Ccash (Deferred
Federal Grantor/Program/ org. or hward Fevenue) at Receipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federasl CFDA Number Ho. Amount 99/30/01 Adjustiments FY 02 FY 02 09/30/02
V.8, Department of Education
Dirgct Programe
Balance forwarded; $ 4,968,486 $ 41,033 5 {41,033 s ({133,019 3 133,039 $ -
CG - T6 Grace Christian Saipan 001283 - 1,924 {1,924} 12,500} 2,500 -
CG - T6 Grace Chrisitan Tinian 0012B5 - 7,368 {7,368) - - -
CG - T6 Northern Marianas Academy 001289 - 13) - - - (9
Strategies 1 - sg 21018E - 1,798 {1,737y {1,453 1,452 1
Strategies 1 - 57 o10lst - {1,873 248,111 (308,691} 309,691 246,234
Strategies 1 - pr 010381 - - 1 (6,099} 6,099 1
Strategies 4 - Staff Davelopment 01048d - 3,217 (3,218B) 4,011 (4,011) (1}
Strategies 5 — C3A 0ioscs - 2,639 (2,639 12,351) 2,351 -
DF - Dandan Elementary School 010780k - - i {8,470) 8,470 1
DF - Garapan Elementary School 0107802 - 4,252 (4,253) (12,4922) 1z,422 (&3]
DF - Hopwood High School 0107804 - 4,114 (4,036} {1,275 1,275 8
DF - Marianas High School 0107806 - - 1 {39,673) 19,673 1
DF - Oleai Elementary School 0107807 - - - (10,006} 10,008 -
DF - San Antonio Elementary School 0107410 - 621 (5620} (2,232) 2,232 1
DF - San Vicents Elemenatry School 0107a11 - 7,728 (7,727} {4,565} 4,565 1
DF - Kagman Elementary School 0107a17 - 9,746 19,747} {1,400) 1,400 (1)
EIE - Garapan Elementary School a109A02 - (3,414) 3,413 {3,066} 5,066 (1)
EIE - Hopwood Jurior High School 0109204 - - - {1,581} 1,581 -
EIE - Koblerville Elementary School 0105A05 - 2,222 {2.222) {2,603) 2,603 -
EIE - Marianas High School 0109A06 - 17,007 (17,007) {5,954) 5,954 -
EIE - Oleai Elementary School 0149A07 - - 533 {607) 697 533
EIE - San Antonio Elementary School 0109A10 - - - (6,540) 6,540 -
EIE - 3an Vicente Elementary School 010911 - - 71 (2,723) 2,723 71
EIE - Tinian Elementary School 0109A13 - 8,432 {8,892) - - -
EIE - Eucon International Scheol 01991802 - - 1 §1,427) 1,427 1
EIE - Grace Christian Tinian 01098405 - - 750 16,774} 5,774 750
EIE - Joshua Generation Academy 0109846 - 1,005 (1,905) {3,521) 3,521 ~
EIE - Mount Carmel School 0109808 - 1,154 (1,153) {3,666) 3,666 1
EIE ~ Seventh Day hdventist 0109813 ~ 5,200 (5,300) - -
EIE -~ Saipan Ianternational School a109B15 - - 8,607 (26,013) 26,013 8,607
EIE - Sister Remedios Pre-Scheol 01093816 - 921 (921) - - -
EIE - Whispering Palms School 0149817 - 143 (443} (4,630) 4,630 -
EIF - Golden Harvest International 0109818 - - 1 {425) 425 1
EIE - Curriculum Acguisition 0109c02 - {3,200) 3,201 (64,978) 64,878 1
EIE ~ Curriculum Tdentification 0109¢03 - 6,811 16,803} {17,796} 17,796 ]
EIE ~ Curriculum Refinement 0109C04 - 2,438 {2,438} {5,139} 5,139 -
EIE - Publiec School System 0109ps5 - - 490,119 (847,118} 847,118 490,119
€G'T6 - Eucon International School 0112802 - - - (17,974) 17,974 -
€3 T6 - Grace Christian Saipan Q113R02 - - - {180) 180 -
CG 16 - Grace Christian Rota 0112804 - - L (8,925 8,825 (1)
CG T6 - Grace Christian Tinian 0112B05 - - - (7,013) 7,013 -
CG T6 - Mount Carmel School 0112808 - 11,3%4 {9,988} (44,945) 44,945 1,410
CG T6 — Worthern Marianas Academy 0112R0% - - - {3,543) 3,543 -
CG T6 - NMC Lab School 0112810 - - - (14,843) 10,843 -
CG T6 ~ San Francisco De Borija 01312B12 - - - (9,905) 9,905 -
CG T6 ~ Saipan International School 4112815 - 1,873 (1,873) {6,650) 6,650 -
€G T6 - Sister Remedios Pre-School 0112B16 - - 1 (1,768) 1,768 1
CG T6 - Whispering Palms School 0112817 - 6,954 (8,954) - - -
CG T6 ~ Golden Harvest International. 0112B14 - - - (5,496) 5,496 -
CG Té - Brilliant Star Montessori 0112819 - 670 (670) {1,932} 1,932 -
Class Size Reduction 6114 - 42,106 48,940 {91,0486) 91,046 91,045
CG Personnel T6 0119 - B7,614 1,075,193 {1,163,212) 1,163,212 1,162,807
Strategies 1 - CAS G201cAs2 - - 3,681 (23,007) 23,007 31,681
Strategies 1 - WMA 5201WMAZ - - (246,238) - - (246,238)
Strategies 1 - SAT 02018AT2 - - 1,530 (46,242) 46,292 1,534
Strategies I - SEA 0201SER2? - - - {19,634) 19,684 -
Strategies 4 - sDP 0204S0E2 - - - (16,735) 16,735 -
Strategies 5 - Csa 020505A2 ~ - - (41,660) 41,860 -
DF - Dandan Elenentary School 02078012 - - - (348) 348 -
DF - Marianas High School 02074062 - - 2,144 (64,1333 64,333 2,144
DF - ¢leai Elementary School 02Z07R072 - - 1,322 (3,675) 3,675 1,322
DF - $an Antonio Elementary School 0207A102 - - - (5,704} 5,704 -
DF - San Vicente Elemenatry School 0207A112 - - 1 18,888) 9,888 1
DF - WSR Elementary Schoal 0207A152 - 16 2,388 {12,234) 12,234 2,388
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal awards
Federal Grants Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Receivable Receivable
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program (Deferred cash {Deferred
Faderal Grantor/Program/ org. or Award Revenue) at Receipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federal CFDA Number Ho. Amournt 09/30/01 Adjustments FY 02 FY 02 09/30/02
U.8,. bPepartment of Education
Direet Proglams
Balance forwarded: § 4,868,486 $ 275,352 $ 1,491,140 § 13,153,718) $ 3,153,718 $1,766,492
DF - Kagman Elementary School 0207R172 - - - {5,303 5,303 -
DF - Xagman Bigh School 02078192 - - [ £9)] (14,371 14,371 H
DF - Eucon International School 0207B0Z22 - - 1 (1,364) 1,364 1
DF - Northern Mariabas Academy 02078092 - - 699 (639) 699 69%
Drug Free - Administration 0207C012 - - 1 (3,630} 3,630 1
EIE - Dandan Elementary School 0209n012 - - 1 (7.925) 1,825 1
EIE - Hopwood Junior High School 02092042 - - (25,814} 25,914 1
EIE - Koblerville Elementary School 0209a052 - - 155 (B,797) B,797 155
BIE - Marianas High School 0205A062 - - - 131,850) 31,850 -
EIE - Oleai Elementary school 020%A072 - - 250 14,533} 4,583 2510
EIE - Rota Jr. High Schaol 0209A082 - - - {2,633) 2,633 -
EIf - San Antonio Elementary School 02498102 - - - {6,035) 6,035 -
EIE - San Vicente Elementary School 02098112 - - - {13,312) 13,312 -
EIE - Tanapag Elementary School 0209A122 - = - (489) 489 -
EIE — Tinian Elementary School 0209A1132 - - 410 (8,466) 8,466 410
EIE - WSR Elementary School 0209A152 - - 1 (B58) 858 1
EIE - Kagman Elementary Scthool 0209A172 - - - (189) 19% -
EIE - Sinapalo Elementary School 02092182 - - 1 {339) 339 i
EIE ~ Kagman High School DZO9ALY2 - - - (9,040) 9,040 -
EIE - Euncon International School 02098022 - - 18,257 (76,232} 16,232 19,257
EIE - Grace Christian Rota 02098042 - - 4,454 (8,737) 8,737 4,454
EIE - Joshua Generation Rcademy 0209B0%2 - - - (2,266) 2,266 -
EIE ~ Mount Carmel School 02098082 - - 2,266 (1%,183) 19,183 2,266
EIE - Northern Marianas Academy 02098092 - T - 4,786 (16,134} 16,134 4,786
EIE - Salpan Community School 02098112 - - - (3,859) 3,85% -
EIE - San Francisco De Rorija 02030122 - - - (1,488) 1,488 -
EIE - Saipan International School 02098152 - - 5,604 (52,145) 52,145 5,604
EIE - Sister Remedios Pre-School 02098162 - - 4,329 {6,118) 6,118 4,329
ETE - Whispering Palms School 062098172 - - 3,936 (14,310) i4,310 3,936
EIE - Admin. Prof. Dev. & Service Del. 06209c012 - - - (511) 511 -
EIE = Curriculum Acquisition 0209C022 - - 2,068 132,357) 32,357 2,064
EIE - Parental Involvement 0209C032 - - 305 (13,022} 13,022 305
EIE - Public Schaol System 0209PSE2 - - (255,747) (6,789) 6,789 (255,747)
C TG ~ Eucon International School 02128022 - - 415 (1,425} 1,426 416
CG T6 ~ Grace Christian Saipan 02128032 - - 608 (5,378} 5,378 608
CG T6 - Grace Christian Rota 02128042 - - 523 (523) 523 523
CG T6 - Grace Christian Tinian 02128052 - - 1 (5,090) 5,090 1
CG T6 - Joshua Generaticn Rcademy 02128062 - - - (4,175) 4,175 -
CG T6 - Mount Carmel School 0212B0HZ - - E20 [13,637) 13,637 E20
CG T6 - Northern Marianas Academy 0212R0%2 - - 1 {13,795) 13,795 1
€G T6 - NMC Lab School 021281402 - - - {12,024} 12,024 -
€CG T6 - San Francisco De Borja 0212B122 - - - (10,158} 10,158 -
CG T6 - Saipan International School 4212152 - - 3,319 (19,490) 19,490 3,319
€G T6 - Sister Remedios Fre-School 02128162 - - 25,859 (33,846) 35,846 25,859
CG 76 - Whispering Palms School 02128172 - - 1 (10,670) 10,670 1
CG T6 - Brilliant Star Mohtessori 0212B192 - - 4,476 (B,476) 8,476 B, 478
CG T6 - Admin. 0210ADM2 - - 1 {10,332) 10,332 1
Class Size Reduction 0214c5R2 - - (54,682} (562,291} 562,291 (54,682)
CG T6 - Personnel T6 021500GP2 - - {1,077,238) (116,514} 116,514 [1,077,238)
CG TE - CAS 0213CR52 - - 463 £15,989) 15,989 169
CG T6 - JIDF 6214JDF2 - - - (10,398} 10,398 -
CG T6 - Staff Development 02194SD2 - - 1,842 (37,096) 37,096 2,842
Subtotal CFDA# 84.922A § 4,868,486 $ 275,352 $ 195,133 § (4,445,784) § 4,445,784 $ 470,485
crpad 84.215U
Christa Mcahulife Grant 4045 3 24,764 § - $ - 3 - $ ~ $ -
Christa Mchulife Grant 004580 - (45) 45 ~ - {0}
Christa McAulife Grant 0045Cs - {578) - - - {578)
christa McAulife Grant N045HS - 1205} - - - 1205y
Christa McAulife Grant 0045MA - 37 1861) - - - {961)



I PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
I Federal Grants Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2002
Receivable Receivable
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program {Deferred Cash (Deferred
Federal Grantor/Program/ Cryg. or Award Revenue) at Receipts Expenditures Revenue) at
I Title/Federal CFDA Number Wa. Amount 09/30/01 Adjustments FY 02 FY 62 03/30/02
Christa Mehulife Grant 0045MR - (52) - - - {52}
I U.8. Department of Education
Direct Programs
Balance ferwarded: $ 24,764 § {1,841} H] 45 § - $ - § (1,796)
Chrxista Mchulife Grant 0045RA - (1,818} - - ~ (1,818)
l Christa McAulife Grant 004587 - (114} - - - {118)
Christa McAulife Grant 0045RG - (105} - - - (105)
Christa Mchulife Grant ¢145 - (5,000} - - - (5,000)
Christa McAulife Grant 0145081 - - 2,500 (2,497) 2,497 2,500
Christa Mchulife Grant 0145MH1 - 1,500 1,600 (1,000} 1,000 2,500
Christa McAulife Promotion 0146 - (2,815} 2,815 (2,815} 2,815 -
Christa McAulife Grant 024583062 - - - (234) 234 -
Christa MchAulife Grant 0245CMF2 - (17 ,498) 17,438 (12,500) 12,500 -
Christa Mchulife Grant 0245LBH2 - - - [2,264) 2,264 -
I Christa McAulife Grant 0245PRW2 = = (133} [2,3687) 2,367 {133})
Subtotal CFDA# 84.215U ] 24,764 5 {27,695) 3 23,725 $ (23,677} 5 23,677 $ (3,970}
CEDAY §4.027
Handicapped Children 2306 § 3,161,954 8 - $ - $ - 3 - $ -
SPED Handicapped Children SER a083 - 3,196 {3,196} {10,317) 10,317 -
. SPED - Admin B 0084 - 7,294 {7.,298) (11,131) 11,121 -
l SPED Handicapped Children LEA 0085 - 12,286 (12,286) 139, 348) 39,348 -
SPED Handicapped Children SER 0183 - 8,478 {B,474) (2808,031) 288,031 -
SPED - Admin 0184 - 2,151 {2,152) (139,488) 139,488 (1)
SPED Handicapped Children LEA 0185 - 125,337 (125,336) (347,225) 347,225 L
SPED Pacific Grant G186 - 11,227 {11,227) - - -
SPED Handicapped Children SEA 02938PE2 - - 4,555 (417,010} 417,010 4,555
I SPED - Admin 02848PE2 - - 6,375 (48,026) 48,026 6,975
SPED Handicapped Children LEA CZa5SPEZ - - 153,476 {1,151,716) 1,151,716 153,476
SPED Pacific Grant 02868PE2 - - 37,918 1154,433} 154,433 37,918
l Subtotal CFDA# 84.027 $ 3,161,054 5 169,973 $ 32,951 $ {2,606,725) $§ 2,606,725 5 202,924
CFDAf 84.181
SPED Infant & Toddlers 00BB H 401,540 £ (39,299) $ 17,578 § (1,346} 1] 1,346 $  {21,721)
I SPED Infant & Toddlers 0ldg - (12%,161) 151,682 {151,082) 151,082 21,721
- SPED Infant & Toddlers 02885PEZ = (57,452) 87,681 {1256,937) 256,937 ag,229
l Subtotal CFDA# 84.181 5 401,540 $ (226,112) § 256,341 3 (409,365) 5 409, 365 § 30,229
CFDA} B4.000
; NCES Computers 2289 $ - $ - § 1 § - $ - § 1
Common Core -~ Data 2652 - - (524) (2,317} 2,317 (524)
NCES Ccomputers 2389 - (2,627} 2,317 - - (310)
Common Core - Data 2552 - (3,063} - - - {3,063}
Common Core - Data 2665 - (1,862) - {1,493 1,493 {1,882y
Common Core - Data 2765 - {1,510) 1,510 - - -
' Common Core - Data 2689 - (412) - - - (412)
Common Core - Data 2252 - 21,103 - {67C} 670 21,103
Comparability HCES 2789 - (25,000) 670 (14,721} 14,721 (24,330}
Comparability MNCES 2889 - (14,721) 14,721 (7,282} 7,282 -
Commen Core - Data 2865 - {8,656} 7,282 (20,184) 20,184 {1,374}
I Common Core - Data 2965 - (21,334) 20,184 (4,985) 4,985 {1,150)
{omparability NCES 2989 - {33,550) 4,585 (1},262) 11,262 (28,565)
Common Core - Data 0065 - {31,215) 11,262 - - (1%,953)
Common Core - Data 0165 - {22,307) (7.435) - - 129,742)
I Data Improvement — NCES 00RG - {15,000} - - - {15,000}
common Cora ~ Data 8265CcCD2 - - (28,000) - - {28,000
Comparability HCES 02B9NCE2 - - (22,500) - - (12,500
—-38-



PUBLIC SCHOCL SYSTEM

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants Fund

Year Ended September 30, 2002
Receivable Receivable
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program (peferred Cash {Deferread
Federal Grantor/Program/ Org. or hAward Revenue)} at ) Receipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federal CFDA Number Ho. Amount 09/30/01 Adjustments FY 02 FY 02 09/30/02
Subtotal CFDA# 84.000 s - § (160,154} $ 14,473 5 (62,914) 5 62,914 § {145,681)
U.$. Department of Education
Direct Programs
CFDA} B4.185
R.C. Byrd School Program 0174 s 60,000 3 - $ - % - 5 - 3 -
R.C. Byrd School Program 0274RCBZ - - - {18,245) 18,245 -
R.C. Byrd Echool Program 037 4RAIRCE - - - {59,755) 5%,755 -
Subtotal CFDA# 84.3185 5 60,008 ] - 3 = $ (78,4000) $ 78,000 $ -
Total U.S. Department of Education 5 8,724,204 ] 47,424 § 556,538 $ (8,303,342} $ 4,303,342 S 603,962
U.S. Department of Health K and Human Services
Direct Programs
cFoaf 93.500
Headstart Basic 0181 $ 1,578,455 8 B9, 765 $ (99,765} 3 (53,820) ] 53,820 H -
Headstart Training o182 - 7,892 (7,092) (4458) 445 -
Headstart Basiec 0281HDS?2 - - 205,439 {1,195,717) 1,195,717 205,439
Headstart Training 02B2HD52 - - 27 {42,589) 42,589 27
Subtotal CFDA# 93.600 $ 1,578,455 ] 96,857 5 108,609 $ (1,292,571 5 1,292,571 $ 205,466
cFoaf 93.575
Child Care Administration 2990 $ 1,636,489 § 1 N (1) $ - § - $ -
Child Care Certificates 2991 - 26,575 {26,375} - - -
€C Before & nfter School 4694 - (20} - - - (20)
Child Care Adminigtration 0190 - 3,444 {1,136) (45,264) 45,264 2,308
Child Care certificates 0191 - 35,078 (35,078) {200,296) 200,296 -
Child Care Quality & Activity 0192 - - - {53,312) 53,312 -
Child Care School Age/R&R 0193 - - - {7,033} 7,039 -
CC Before & After Schaol 0194 - {113) 112 {9,047} 9,047 (1)
Child Care Infant & Toddler 01395 - 5,153 (5,153) (62,443} €2,443 -
Child Care Quality Expansion 0196 - 17 {16} (349, 365) 38, 365 1
Child Care Administration 02%0CCP2 - - 5,499 (42,473) 42,473 5,499
Child Care Certificates 0291CcCP2 - - 1,713 {329,463} 329,463 1,713
child care Quality & Activity 0292CCP2 - - 1,837 {4,419) 4,419 1,837
Child Care School Age/R&R 0293ccr2 - - 1 {14,516) 14,516 1
CC Before & After School 0294CCP2 - - 2] (345,936) 345,936 721
Child Care Infant & Toddler 1295CCP2 - - - (43,793) 43,793 -
Child Care Quality Expansion 0296CCP2 - - 1,204 (59,822, 59, 822 1,204
Subtotal CFDA# 93.575 $ 1,636,489 5 76,135 5 {56,872) § (1,256,188) $ 1,256,188 g 13,263
CFpa¢ 93.938
Aids-HIV 2961 $ 160,481 $ (1} $ 1 5§ - $ - ] -
nids-HIV 0061 -~ 251 222 {121 321 475
Aids-HIV Hedia 0160 - 682 (804} (44,242) 44,242 {122
Alds-HIV 0161 - {475) - (16,775) 16,775 (475)
Aids-RIV 0261HIVZ - - 4,811 {63,829} 63,829 4,611
Subtotal CFDA# 93.938 160,481 454 4,230 [125,167) 125,167 4,689
Total U. 8. Department of Health and
Human Services $ 3,175,425 $ 167,451 $ 55,967 $ (2,673,926} 5 2,673,926 5  223,41m
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants Fund

Year Ended September 30, 2002
Receivable Receivahle
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program {Deferred Cash (Deferred
Federal Grantor/Program/ Org. or Award Revenue} at ) Receipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federal CFDA Number No . Amount 09/30/01 Adjustments FY 02 FY 02 09/30/02
U.S. Department of Aqriculture
Direct Programs
CFD. 0,555
USDA TEFAP 0175 $ 4,653,527 $ - $ (2,0458) 8 - $ - § (2,045)
FNS Breakfast Lunch Program 0177 - 218,011 (27,397 (1,377,237) 1,377,237 190,614
FNS State Admin. Expense 0178 - 5,096 {5,098) 162,420) 62,420 (2}
FNS Hutrition Education 0179 - 2,099 (2,099) ({13,461) 13,461 -
FNS Equip. & Facility Improvement 0180 - 1,222 3,184 {51,591) 51,581 4,406
FNS Breakfast Lunch Program 0ZTTFNS2 - - (30,353) (Z,558,615) 2,558,615 {30,953)
FHS State Admin. Expense C0278FNS2 - - 3,685 {2,605) 3,685 3,685
FNS Equip. & Facility Impravement 02BIFNS2 - - 5,528 {6,528) 5,528 6,528
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 4,653,527 $ 226,428 3 (54,195} § (4,073,537} 3 4,073,537 $ 172,233
U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct Programs
(=] 20.509
Federal Transit Bus Q170 -3 170,265 $ - § - § (53,042} 5 53,042 § -
Federal Transit Bue 0270BUS2 - - 75,833 (75,833) 75,833 75,833
Total U.S. Department of Transportation g 170,268 5 = $ 75,833 $ (128,875} $ 124,875 H 75,833
Other
Direct Programs
CFpAf 94.006R
Americorps -~ Admin. 023BANC2 5 269,269 $ . - 5 2,723 $ {959) 3 959 S 2,723
Americorps 0Z239AMC2 - - ~ (27,511) 27,511 -
Subtotal CFDA# 94,0062 269,269 = 2,723 {28,470} 28,470 2,723
CFDAf 84.352Aa
School Facilities Renovation 0141 $ - $ ~ 5 1,943 $ (1,943} 5 1,943 S 1,343
SFR - Garapan Zlementary School 0141GES - - - {37,990} 37,9%0 -
8FH - Gregorio T. Camachc Elem. Sch. Q14 1GFD - - - {10,737} 10,797 -
SFR - Hopwood Junior High School 0141HIH - -~ 69,229 (40,994) 40,994 69,229
8FR - Koblerville Elementary Schoal 0141KES - - 2,314 (2,882) 9,882 2,314
SFR - Marianas High Schoel 014 1MHS - - - (41,994) 43,994 -
SFR - Oleai Elementary School 01410ES - - 304 (34,449) 34,449 304
SFR - San Antonio Elementary School 01418AS - - 861 (36,244) 36,244 461
SFR - San Vicente Elementary School 01415vs - - 554 (37,658) 37,658 554
SFR - Tanapag Elementary School 0141TAN - - 6,925 (39,300) 38,300 6,925
SFR - W3R Elementary School D141WSR = = - (24,031) 24,031 -
Subtotal CFDA# 84.3523 H - 5 i $ 82,130 $ (317,282) 3 317,282 S 82,130
Total Other Programs § 269,269 5 - § 84,853 g {345,752) 5 345,752 $ 84,853
Total Federal Grants Fund § 17,1%2,690 g 441,303 $ 718,998 5$1(15,525,432) $ 15,525,432 $1,160,299
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PUBLIC SCROOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Scope of Review

{2)

The Public School System was established a8 a public non-profit
corporation by the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CNMT)
Public Law 6~10, effective October 25, 1988 and began operations on
October 1, 1988. Aall significant operations of PSS are included in the
Scope of the OMB Circular A-133 audit (the “Single Audit”). The vU.s,
Department of the Interior’s Office of the Inspector General has been
designated as pgs’ cognizant agency for the Single Audit.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basisg of Accounting

For purposes of <this report, certain accounting procedures were
followed which help illustrate the authorizations and expenditures of
the individual programs. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards is prepared on the accrual basig of accounting. A1l
authorizations represent the total allotments or grant awards received,
All expenses and capital outlays are reported as expenditures.

Any federal funds expended in excess of federal funds received are
recorded as a receivable from the grantor agency and any federal funds
received in excess of federal funds expended are recorded as a payable
to the grantor agency.

b. Indirect Cost Allocation
PSS negotiated an indirect cost plan with the U.S. Department of the
Interior for fiscal year 2002. It is applicable to all federal grant

programs and was 7.2% of payroll expenditures for the year

ended
September 30, 2002.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
IK ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Year Ended September 30, 2002



J. Seolt Magliari
"t COMPANY

: CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
SATPAM: GUAM:

PMB 207 PPP Box 10000 » Sapax, MP 96950 P. Q. Box 12734  Tamuming, Guan 96631
TeL: (670) 233-1837 = Fax;: (670) 233-8214 Tew: (871) 472-2680 » Fax: (671) 472-1686

Independent Auditor’s Report
on Compliance and on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting Based on Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Covernment Auditing Standards

The Board of Education
Public School System

I have audited the financial statements of the Public School System (PSS}, as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2002, and have issued my report thereon
dated July 11, 2003. T conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PSs’ financial
statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants,
noncompliance with which c¢ould have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and,
accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that is required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, I considered PSS’ internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing my opinion on +the financial statements and not +to provide
assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, I noted
certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its
operation that I consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions
involve matters coming to my attention relating to significant deficiencies in
the design or operation of the intermnal contrel over financial reporting that,
in my Jjudgment, could adversely affect PSS' ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management

in the financial statements. Reportable conditions are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding Nos. 02-1 to
02-2, :
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or
more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that misstatements in amount that would be material in relation
to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. My consideration of the internal control over financial reporting
would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be
reportable conditions and accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of
PSS, the Board of Education, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities
and the cognizant audit and other federal agencies and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

c:%?éf)t;Tr-ﬁf\ thd Ckwhpa“
ommonwealth oflUthe Northern Mariana Islands
July 11, 2003
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]

Independent Auditor’s Report on
Compliance With Requirements Applicable to

Each Major Federal Award Program and on Intermal

Control Over Compliance With OMB Circular A-133 and on

the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The Board of Education
Public School System

Campliance

I have audited the compliance of the Public School System (PSS) with the types
of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its
major federal programs for the vear ended September 30, 2002, The P8S’ major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’'s results section of
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (pages 46 through

48). Compliance with the reguirements of laws, regqulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
PSS’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on PSS compliance

based on my audit.

I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Govermnments and Non-Profit Qrganizations. These standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
P38’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
I considered necessary in the circumstances. I believe that my audit provides a
reasonable basis for my opinion. My audit does not provide a legal
determination on PSS’ compliance with those requirements,

As described in schedule of Finding Nos. 02-3 through 02-22 in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, PSS did not comply with requirements
regarding activities allowed or unallowed, eligibility, reporting and special
tests and provisions with such requirements is necessary, in my opinion, for PSS
to comply with requirements applicable to these programs.

In my opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding
paragraph, PSS complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for
the year ended September 30, 2002.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of PSS is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing
my audit, I considered PSS’ internal control over compliance with requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a2 major federal Program in order
to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

I noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and its
operation that I consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions
involve matters coming to my attention relating to significant deficiencies in
the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in my
judgment, could adversely affect PS8' ability +to administer a major federal
program in accordance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs in Finding Nos. 02-3 through 02-22,

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or
more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level +he risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major
federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
My consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily
digclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions
and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that
are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the reportable
conditions described above, I consider Finding Nos. 02-4 through 02-5, 02-7, 02-
9, 02-10, and 02-22 as identified in the accompanying schedule of findings and
gquestioned costs, to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

I have audited the basic financial statements of PSS as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2002, and have issued my report thereon dated July 11, 2003.
My audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion eon the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards {pages 34 through 40) is presented for the
purpose of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A~133 and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. This Schedule is the
responsibility of the management of PSS. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in my opinion, except as described in the aforementioned report, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of
PSS, the Board of Education, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities
and the cognizant audit and other federal agencies and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties,

c%ibiihkﬂr i\/\_ T é¢ Cs*‘Q“ﬁj

Commonwealth %f the Northerd Mariana Islands
July 11, 2003
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PUBLIC SCHOCL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION I -~ SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

* Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no

* Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? X _vyes _ no

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes ¥ no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

s Material weakness(es) identified? X _ves no

* Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? yves X  no

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major federal programs: ' Qualified on all major
federal programs

any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with section 510(a) of Circular A-1332? X__vyes no
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PUBLIC SCHCOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questiored Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION I — SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS, Continued

Federal Awards

Identification of major programs:

CFDA

Federal
Humber Description Expenditures
84.922A Consolidated Grant +to Tusular Areas $ 4,445,784
10,555 Nutrition Assistance Grant 4,073,537
84.027 Special Education Program 2,606,725
93.600 Head Start Program 1,292,571
93.575 Child Care and Development Block Grant — 1,256,188

Total Federal Expenditures-Major Programs §1§Egg45§g§

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

$ _ 465,762

3% of the total awards expended

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee — _ Yes X _no

SECTION II — INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS
=esssn 22 T ANVEA IO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

Reference Reference Questioned
Number Findings Page Number Cost
02-1 Travel Advances 49 ] -
02-2 Financial Statements 50 -
Total Questioned Costs s_ -
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30,

2002

SECTION III — INDEX TO FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

Reference

Number Findings

02-3 Activities Allowed or Unallowed
02-4 to 5 Eligibility

02-6 to 10 Reporting

02~11 to 22 Special Tests and Provisions

Total Questioned Costs

-48-

Reference
Page Number

51-52
53-58
58-65
66-85

Questioned
Cost




PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION II — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Travel Advances

Finding No. 02-1

Criteria

PS5 current policy requires the traveler to submit travel voucher 10 working
days after the completion of the travel with supporting documents required
under the policy. Payroll deduction will be initiated within 15 working days
if the traveler does not submit travel voucher and supporting documents.

Condition
It appears that PSS does not adequately monitor adherence to its travel
policies. Following are the results of the examination performed:

a. 1 out of 7, or 14% travel regquests examined was not submitted within
ten working days prior to commencement of travel.

b. 3 out of 7, or 43% travel vouchers examined were not submitted
within ten working days upon completion of travel.

c. 3 out of 7, or 43% samples tested were not automatically deducted
the amount due £from payroll for untimely liquidation of travel
advance.

Cause
There was no strict enforcement as to PSS policies and procedures on
collecting unliquidated travel advances.

Effect

Failure to enforce collection on outstanding travel advances will result in
understated expenditure, overstated travel advances receivable and
significant bad debts. Cash flows are also negatively affected.

Regommendation
PSS should strictly enforce its established policies and procedures in
collecting unliguidated travel advances.

Prior Year Status
The above condition has been reported as a finding in fiscal years 1998
through 2¢01.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

PSS concurs. With the tremendous efforts the management has already made on
the strict implementation of its policies and procedures governing travel
advances, this condition is anticipated to be fully resolved in fiscal year
2003.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION II — FINANCTAT, STATEMENT FINDINGS

Financial Statements

Finding No. 02-2

Criteria
The accounting system should ensure that the balance sheet is balanced at the
end of each fiscal year.

Condition

PSS’ balance sheet of general fund as of September 30, 2002 was not balanced.
Total liabilities and fund equity exceeded assets by $9,590. This amount was
adjusted to miscellaneous expenses to correct the balance of the financial
statements of PSS.

Cause
PSS does not have a system of internal control to ensure that its general
ledgers are properly balanced.

Effect
Financial reports are inaccurate and financial decisions could be made based
on inaccurate information. However, the amount does not have a material

effect on the financial statements.

Recommendation
PSS should consider updating or modifying the design of their current
financial management sgystem based on the needs of the organization. This

would help the employees on their assigned tasks and generate the desired
output for the end users.

Prior Year Status
The above condition has been reported as a finding in fiscal years 2000 and
2001.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
With the periodic review of the general ledger, PSS ensures that at the end

of fiscal year ending 2003, the financial statements would be balanced.
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PUBLIC SCHOQL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTICON ITI — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGE AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Activities Allowed or Unallowed - Consolidated Grantsg to _Insular Areas

Finding No, 02-3

CFDA no.

84.922A

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria

One of the strategies established under this
grant 1is the involvement of parents and the
community to help all students meet challenging
state standards and promote bottom up reform.

PSS is to provide workshop opportunities to
parents who will then develop training modules on
effective parenting skills, parental involvement
or other learned skills. Evaluation of this
program is based on the records maintained on the
number of meetings held, the number of parents
receiving training and type of training provided.

Condition

Expenditures pertaining to this program are well
supported but P8s failed +to adhere +to the
requirements of the State Plan. There was no
proper monitoring of the activities held during
the vyear, no records were maintained on the
number of meetings held, the number of parents
receiving the +training and type of training
provided for the fiscal year 2002.

Cause

PSS lacks monitoring system to properly
administer the activities and programs set-up
under this grant.

Effect
The effect of this condition is possible
disallowed costs.

Recommendation

The State Educational Agency (SEA) should enforce
existing internal policies and procedures and
comply with the requirements of the State Plan.

Prior Year Status

The above condition was cited as a finding in
fiscal years 2000 and 2001.

-51-~
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION TIIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Activities Allowed or Unallowed - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding Wo. 02-3, Continued

CFDA no.

84.922a

Findings/Noncompliance

Auditee Regponse and Corrective Action Plan
Since the hiring of additional Federal monitor

has proven very difficult to implement, the
Public School has decided to implement its own
internal monitoring program. An audit program
will be prepared and implemented by the Internal
Auditor of PSS with the assistance of the
Comptroller of the Fiscal & Budget Office. They
will Jjointly audit +he major Federal programs,
which consist of the following: Consolidated
Grants, PFood & Nutrition, Special Education,
Headstart, and Childcare Services.

Each major program will be internally audited
once a year. The four internal audits will be
conducted in an independent environment, as these
internal reports will be communicated directly to
the Board of Education, O0Office of the Public
Auditor, and the external auditors.

~-h2-
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Eligibility - Nutrition Assistance Grant

Finding No. 02-4

CFDA mno.:

10.555

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria
The purpose of this grant is to assist States in
administering food services that provide

healthful, nutritious meals to eligible children
in publiec and non-profit private schools,
residential child care institutions, and summer
recreation programs and encourage the domestic
consumption of nutritious agricultural
commodities.

To be eligible to participate in the Food and
Nutrition program, the following criteria must be
met pursuant to 7CFR §210.2:

a. Application.

b. Reside with a family whose income does not
exceed 75% of the State’'s median income for a
family of the same size.

The documentation required to support eligibility
should include:

a. Application form properly filled-up and signed
by applicant.

b. Proof of gross income such as check stub for
two-pay periods attached to the application
form.

c¢. For food stamp recipients, proof of Nutrition
Assistance FProgram (NAP) Recipients form is
properly filled-up and signed by applicant.

d. Photocopy of Food stamp I.D. Card is attached
to the NAP recipient form

e. Student’s name included in the summary listing
submitted to the federal office.

Condition
a. 12 or 48% of the participants tested have only

one paycheck as proof of income attached to
the application form.

~-53—
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PUBLIC SCHQOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III — FEDERAT. AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Eligibility - WNutrition Assistance Grant

Finding No.

02-4, Continued

CFDA no.:

Findings/Noncompliance

10.555

Condition, Continued

b. 3 or 12% of the participants, who are food
stamp recipients, do not have a photocopy of
the Food Stamp I.D. card attached to the NAP
recipient form to show independent
verification of this number.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, the
Nutrition Assistance Program had total program
expenditures of $4,073,537. Dollar amounts of
gquestioned costs directly related to this finding
could not be ascertained.

Cause

The cause of the above condition is a lack of
administrative oversight and internal monitoring
procedures.,

Effect

Some participants under the Food and Nutrition
Assistance program may not be eligible to receive
the free meal and reduced price meal. Lack of
necessary documents could question their
eligibility as a recipient of the program.

Recommendation

PSS should develop policies and monitoring
procedures to ensure that all of the necessary
documentation is received before a child is
enrolled in the Food and Nutrition Assistance
Program.

Prior Year Statug

Lack of appropriate record retention and filing
policies and procedures was reported as a finding
in the 8ingle Audits of PSS since 1995 through
2001.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION ITI — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Eligibility - Nutrition Assistance Grant

Finding No. 02-4, Continued

CFDA no.:

10.555

Findings/Noncoleiance

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

Since the hiring of additional Federal monitor
has proven very difficult to implement, the
Public School has decided to implement its own
internal monitoring program. An audit program
will be prepared and implemented by the Internal
Auditor of PSS with the assistance of the
Comptroller of the Fiscal & Budget Office. They
will Jjointly audit the major Federal brograms,
which consist of the following: cConsolidated
Grants, Food & ¥utrition, Special Education,
Headstart, and Childcare Services.

Each major program will be internally audited
onceé a year. The four internal audits will be
conducted in an independent environment, as these
internal reports will be communicated directly to
the Board of Education, Office of the Public
Auditor, and the external auditors.
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PUBLIC SCHQOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 20602

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Eligibility — Child Care and Development Block Grant

Finding No.

02-5

CFDA no.:

93.575

FindingsgNoncomgliance

Criteria
The purpose of the grant is to increase the
availability, affordability, and quality

childeare services.

Te be eligible to participate in the Childecare
program, the following criteria must be met
pursuant to 45CFR §98.2:

a. Child is thirteen years of age.

b. Reside with a family whose income does not
exceed 75% of the State's median income for a
family of the same size.

Cc. Reside with a parent or parents who are U.S
Citizens and working, that 1isg, gainfully
employed 40 hours a week for full-time
employment or a fraction thereof for students
enrolled in an educational brogram who are
working part-time.

The documentation required to support eligibility
should include:

a. Application for participation is completed,
signed, and dated by parent or legal guardian.

b. Two check stubs attached to the application or
proof of fulltime enrollment in an acceptable
education institution.

€. Copy of birth certificate of the child.

d. Copy of birth certificate of the parent/s.

@. Certificate and Confirmation form is signed by
appropriate agency official.

Condition

a. 3 out of 25 applicants, or 12% do not have
copy of birth certificates or passports to
verify their citizenship

b. 1 out of 25 applicants, or 4% do not have
proof of full time enrollment at an acceptable
institution on file.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IJIT — FEDERAT, AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIQNED COSTS

Eligibility -

Child Care and Development Block Grant

Finding No.

02-5, Continued

CFDA no.:

93.575

Findings/Noncompliance

Condition, Continued
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, the

Childcare Development Block Grant had total
program expenditures of $1,256,188. Dollar
amounts of questioned costs directly related to
this finding could not be ascertained,

Cause

The cause of the above condition is that Pss
lacks administrative oversight and internal
monitoring procedures.

Effect

Some participants under the Childcare and
Development Block Grant program may not be
eligible to be enrolled on this program. Lack of
necessary documents could question their
eligibility as a recipient of the program and the
potential for a disallowed cost.

Recommendation

F3s should develop policies and monitoring
procedures to ensure that all of the necessary
documentation is received before a child is
enrolled in the Childcare Program.

Prior Year Status

Lack of adequate controls to ensure all required
documents are submitted by the applicant was
reported as a finding in the Single Audits of PSS
since fiscal years 1997 through 2001.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION ITII — FEDRERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Eligibility - Child Care and Development Block Grant

Finding No, 02-5, Continued

CFDA no.:

93.575

Findings/Noncompliance

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
Since the hiring of additional Federal monitor

has proven wvery difficult +to implement, the
Public School has decided to implement its own
internal monitoring program. An audit program
will be prepared and implemented by the Internal
Auditor of PSS with the assistance of the
Comptroller of the Fiscal & Budget Qffice. They
will jointly audit the major - Federal programs,
which consist of the following: Conscolidated
Grants, Food & Wutrition, BSpecial Education,
Headstart, and Childcare Services.

Each major program will be internally audited
once a year. The four internal audits will be
conducted in an independent environment, as these
internal reports will be communicated directly to
the Board of Education, Office of the Public
Auditor, and the external auditors.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Reporting - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding No. 02-6

CFDA no.

84.922A

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria

As stated in the state plan under the Safe and
Drug Free Program, PSS would prepare an annual
report detailing the ©progress towards its
goals/objectives, The PSS Public Information
Office will prepare a press release on the report
and will disseminate the press release to all
media outlets (radio, TV, and newspaper). Copies
of the report itself will be available when
requested by the media, parent groups, government
and community leaders or others who would ask for
the report.

Condition
PSS does not prepare an annual report that would
detail progress toward its goals/objectives.

Cause

The cause of the above condition is the lack of
system that will document, monitor, and evaluate
the various activities administered by Pss as a
grantee agency.

Effect

The effect of this condition is possible
disallowed costs and non-compliance with the
grant terms and conditions.

Recommendation
PSS should adopt a system that will ensure

compliance with the grant terms and conditions.

Prior Year gtatus
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
2001 audit report.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

With the implementation of the internal
monitoring program, programs being carried out
under this grant will be properly monitored and
evaluated to ensure that all federal reguirements
are being complied to,
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTTION I[II — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIQNED COSTS

Reporting -~ Consglidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding No. 02-7

CFDA no.

§4.9228

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria
Based on 34 CFR 76.700, *a state shall comply
with the state plan and applicable statues and

‘shall use Federal Funds in accordance with those

plans and regulations”. As stated in the state
plan, PSS is required to submit an end of the
year annual report to US Department of Education
evaluating +the various Title VI programs and
activities. 1In relation to this, the report must
contain information covering the programs for
which the grant is used and administered.

Condition
P58 failed to submit an annual report to the U.S
Department of Education.

Cause

PSS has not adopted any system to monitor how the
programs were carried out under the consoclidated
grant and the enforcement of obligations under
the applicable statues and regulations.

Effect
The effect of this condition is non-compliance
with the terms and conditions of the grant.

Recommendation

The SEA should adopt a system that will ensure
compliance with the requirements of the State
Plan.

Prior Year Status
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audits of fiscal years 2000 and 2001.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

With the implementation of the internal
monitoring program, programs being carried out
under this grant will be properly monitored and
evaluated to ensure that all federal requirements
are being complied to.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION TII — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Reporting — Nutrition Assistance Grant

Finding No. 02-B
CFDA no.: Findings/Noncompliance
10.555

Criteria

As stated in the Memorandum of Understanding,
Quarterly Performance Report shall be submitted
no later than 320 days after the end of the
quarter to which they pertain (that is, January
30, April 30, July 30, and October 30). This
report shall be submitted on a guarterly basis in
accordance with the indicated timeframes for each
fiscal year’s grant until the grant is fully
expended or recovered by FNS.

Condition

Review of the Quarterly Performance reports
concerning submission compliance are noted as
follows:

Date No. of

Submitted days late

Quarter ended
December 31, 2001 02/27/02 27 days

Cause
The cause of the above condition is PSS did not

maintain and adhere to a schedule of federal
reporting deadlines.

Effect
The effect of the above condition is lack of
compliance with grant terms and conditions.

Recommendation
I recommend that PS8S should adhere to +the
schedule of federal reporting deadlines.

Prioxy Year Status :
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audits of fiscal years 2000 and 2001.
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PUBLIC SCHOQL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IIY - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Reporting — Nutrition Assistance Grant

Finding No.

02-8

CFDA no.:

10.555

Findings/Noncompliance

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

Since the hiring of additional Federal monitor
has proven very difficult +to implement, the
Public School has decided to implement its own
internal monitoring program. An audit program
will be prepared and implemented by the Internal
Auditor of PSS with the assistance of the
Comptroller of the Fiscal & Budget Office. They
will Jjointly audit the major Federal programs,
which consist of the following: Consolidated
Grants, Food & Nutrition, Special Education,
Headstart, and Childcare Services.

Each major program will be internally audited
once a year. The four internal audits will be
conducted in an independent environment, as these
internal reports will be communicated directly to
the Board of Education, Office of the Public
Auditor, and the external auditors.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III — FEDERAT, AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Reporting — Nutrition Assistance Grant

Finding No. 02-9

CFDA no.,:

10.555

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria

The Article 5 of the Memorandum of Understanding
between the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana
Islands (CNMI) and the Food and Nutrition Service
(FNS), U.S. Department of Agriculture requires
the CNMI to complete and submit to FNS, within
six months of fiscal year end, an independent
audit (Single Audit) of the Nutrition Assistance
Grant funds.

Condition

The CNMI/PSS has not complied within the period
required for the submission of annual Single
Audit of the Nutrition Assistance Grant for
fiscal year 2002.

Cause

The cause of the above condition is PSS did not
contract for a Single Audit or close its records
in a timely manner.

Effect

The effect of the above condition is a lack of
compliance with the Memorandum of Understanding
terms and conditions.

Recommendation
I recommend the annual Single Audit be contracted
prior to year-end.

Prior Year Status
The above condition has been reported as a
finding since fiscal years 1998 through 2001.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
PSS concurs. With the multi-year Request for

Proposal for the Single Audit, PSS would be able
to be current in the annual agency audit Ffor
fiscal year 2003.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Pindings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Reporting — Child Care and Development Block Grant

Finding No. 02-10

CFDA no.: Findings/Noncompliance

93.575
Criteria
In accordance with 45 CFR $98.71, Grantees that
receive assistance Block Grant shall prepare and
submit an annual report every December 31 of each
year.

At a minimum, a grantee’s report to the Secretary

shall:

a. Specify the wuses for which the Grantee
expended funds under §98.50 through 98.52 and
the amount of funds expended for such uses,
pursuant to §98.13(a)(6).

b. To the extent data are reasonably available,
contain available data on the manner in which
the child care needs of families in the area
served by the Grantee are being fulfilled,
including information concerning:

1. The number of children being assisted with
funds provided under the Block Grant, and
under other Federal child care;

2. The type and number of child care programs,
child care providers, caregivers, and
suppoxt personnel located in the area
served by the Grantee;

3. Salaries and other compensation paid to
full and part-time staff who provide child
care services; and

4. Activities +to encourage public private
partnerships that promote business
involvement in meeting child care needs.

c. Describe the extent to which the affordability
and availability of child care services has
increased.

d. If applicable, the findings of the Crantee's
review of its licensing and regulatory
requirements and policies, pursuant to §98.41,
including a description of actions taken by
the Grantee in response to such review,

e. Contain, if applicable, an explanation of any
grantee action, which reduces the level of
childcare standards.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION I1I — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Reporting - Child Care and Development Block Grant

Finding No. 02-10, Continued

Questioned
CFDA no.: Findings/Neoncompliance Costs
93.575 $ -
Criteria
f. Describe the standards and health and safety
requirements applicable to child care

providers in the State or other area served by

the Grantee.
g. Any additional information that the Department
of Secretary shall reguire.

Condition
PSS failed to comply with the submission of the

annual report.

Effect
This might affect the performance of PSS as both

a State Educational Agency (SEA} and Local
¥ducational Agency (LEA}).

Recommendation
PSS should comply with the reporting requirements
of the Childcare funds.

Prior Year Status
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audits of fiscal years 2000 and 2001.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

PSS agrees with the finding. The implementation
of the internal monitoring program would help
ensure that the PSS complies with all the federal
requirements of this program and that all
responsibilities of PSS as both the SEA and LEA
are performed.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areag

Finding No. 02-11

CFDA no. Findings/Woncompliance

84.922a

Criteria

Among the various activities under the Technical
Assistance Program of PSS as a State Educational
Agency is the design of a responsive plan to
provide school/PSS site-based opportunities for
staff to learn new concepts and methodologies.
This program will include special activities
{such as monitoring, ete.) for new teachers to
assure they have the skills needed to assist
schoolchildren in meeting challenging academic
standards.

As part of the evaluation process for the
aforementioned activities, reports will be
developed as to how specific staff benefiting
from this strategy provided the assistance
required to effectively implementing SEA
strategies  and LEA innovative assistance
programs.

Condition
No evaluation is being done for the
aforementioned activities.

Cause
PS5 lacks a system that will document, monitor,
and evaluate its various activities.

Effect
The effect of this condition is possible
disallowed costs.

Recommendation

The SEA should enforce existing internal policies
and procedures and comply with the requirements
of the State Plan.

Prior Year Status
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audit of fiscal year 2001.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION TIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIQNED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding No. 02-11, Continued

CFDA no.

84.922a

Findings/Noncompliance

Aduditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

With the combined plan of implementing an
internal monitoring program and assigning a staff
from +the Human Resource Office for Staff
Development will help ensure that federal grant
requirements are met.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding No.

02-12

CFDA no.

84.9223

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria

Based on the state plan, under the Comprehensive
Student Achievement & Participation Program,
students need to be able to participate in CHMI-
wide, national and international competitions and
programs in order that they may overcome the
isolation effects of CNMI‘s insular existence.
Obligation documents on file in +the Fiscal
Section will indicate the materials purchased and
travel completed as it relates to various
competitions. Monthly reports will document
CNMI-wide or off-island activities.

Condition
Reports are not maintained to document the
activities mentioned above.

Cause
PSS lacks a system that will document, monitor,
and evaluate its various activities.

Effect

The effect of this condition 1is possible
disallowed costs and non-compliance with the
grant terms and conditions.

Recommendation
PSS should adopt a system that will ensure
compliance with the grant terms and conditions.

Prior Year Status
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audit of fiscal year 2001.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION ITT — FEDERAT AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED CQSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding No.

02-12, Continued

CFDA no.

84.922Aa

Findings/Noncompliance

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
PSS agrees with the finding. Since the hiring of

additional Federal monitor has proven very
diffjcult to implement, the Public School has
decided to implement its own internal monitoring
program. An audit program will be prepared and
implemented by the Internal aAuditor of PSS with
the assistance of the Comptroller of the Fiscal &
Budget Office. They will jointly audit the major
Federal programs, which consist of the following:
Consolidated Grants, Food & Nutrition, Special
Education, Headstart, and Childcare Services.

Each major program will be internally audited
once a year, The £four internal audits will be
conducted in an independent environment, as these
internal reports will be communicated directly to
the Board of Education, Office of +the Public
Auditor, and the external auditors.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioconed Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding No.

02-13

CFDA no.

84.922A7

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria

As stated in 34CFR Part 76.132, the recipient
should evaluate the effectiveness of the programs
in meeting the purposes and objectives in the
authorizing statues under which programs are used
and administered and an interval evaluation of
these programs must be conducted in accordance
with the procedures the Secretary of Education
may prescribe.

Condition

PSS did not conduct any evaluation of the
programs to ensure its effectiveness in meeting
its purposes and objectives.

Cause
The cause of the above condition is a lack of
system in administering a grant award.

Effect

This would affect the performance of PS5 as a
State Educational Agency. Failure to monitor and
evaluate their programs and activities
demonstrate neglect on their responsibility as
both SEA and LEA.

Recommendation )

PSS should assign one Federal Program Officer in
monitoring and providing assistance on the
institutions that carry out the programs under
this grant and evaluate the effectiveness of
these programs in meeting the purposes -and
objectives of this grant.

Prior Year Status
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audits of fiscal years 2000 and 2001,

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
PSS concurs,. The internal monitoring program

will ensure compliance with the existing terms
and conditions of its federal programs.,
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL, AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Consolidated Grants to TInsular Areas

Finding No, 02-14

CFDA no. Findings/Noncompliance

84.922n

Criteria

Based on the terms and conditions stated on the
state plan regarding the local use of funds, all
procurement orders will be received by Pss,
stamped as property of PSS, and then loaned to
the schools for use in the approved innovative
assistance programs. An inventory will be
maintained for all materials sent to the schools.

Condition
PSS does not maintain an inventory of materials
sent to the schools.

Cause

The cause of the above condition is the lack of
system that will document, monitor, and evaluate
the various activities administered by PSS as a
grantee agency.

Effect

The effect of this condition is possible
disallowed costs and non-compliance with the
grant terms and conditions.

Recommendation
PSS should adopt a system that will ensure
compliance with the grant terms and conditions.

Prior Year Status
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audit of fiscal year 2001,

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

The plan of implementing an internal monitoring
program is an enhanced effort of the PS8 +o
ensure that all federal requirements are being
complied to and that all responsibilities of pgs
as both the SEA and LEA are performed.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III — FEDERAI, AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding No. 02-15

CFDA no.

84.922A

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria

One of the methods for monitoring the
implementation of +the programs at the Local
Educaticonal Agency under the Safe and Drug Free
Schools Program is site visitation to all schools
at least once every fiscal gquarter during which,
technical assistance will be provided.

Condition

The Federal Program Office did wvisit schools
during school years 2001 -~ 2002 but no
documentation of the dates was logged. They were
only able to document the meeting with all school
on Safe & Drug Free issues on May 10, 2002,

Cauge
PSS lacks a system that will facilitate smooth
flow of program operations. In addition, PSS

does not have the necessary personnel who will
carry out its activities effectively.

Effect
The effect of the above condition is possible
non-compliance with grant terms and conditions.

Recommendaticon

PSS should put a system in place that will ensure
compliance with the grant terms and conditions,
as well as facilitate smooth flow of program
operations.

Prior Year Status
The above condition was cited a= a finding in the
Single Audit of fiscal years 2000 and 2001.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

The Public School will implement its own internal
monitoring program. Bn audit program will be
prepared and implemented by the Internal Auditor
of PSS with the assistance of the Comptroller of
the Fiscal & Budget Office and will be conducted
in an independent environment.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED CQGTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Special Education Program

Finding No. 02-16

Questicned
CFDA no. Findings/Noncompliance Costs

84.027 s -

Criteria

Based on the State Plan, PSS shall consult with

the representatives of private school children in

deciding how to conduct the annual count of the

number of private school children with
disabilities and ensure that count is conducted

on December 1 or the last Friday of October each

year.

Condition
PSS was not able to provide the Annual Child
Count for the year 2002.

Cause

The cause of the above condition is lack of
administrative oversight +to ensure that all
requirements were met in accordance with the
State Plan and Federal laws and regulations.

Effect

The child count is being used to determine the
amount that PSS will spend on providing special
education and related services to private school
children with disabilities in the next subsequent
fiscal year. With the cited condition, not all
children with disabilities in private schools may
be included in the population whose needs must be
addressed consistent with the goals and
objectives of this program.

Recommendation

T recommend PSS to ensure that all requirements
on the Federal regulations and activities or
services to be performed as stated on the State
Plan are all complied with.

Prior Year Status
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audits of fiscal years 2000 and 2001.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III - FEDERAL, AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Special Education Program

Finding No.

02-16, Continued

CFDA no.

84.027

Findings/Noncompliance

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan

P55 concurs. Since the hiring of additional
Federal monitor has proven very difficult to
implement, the Public School has decided +to
implement its own internal monitoring program.
An audit program will be prepared and implemented
by the Internal Auditor of PSS with the
assistance of the Comptroller of the Fiscal &
Budget Office. They will jointly audit the major
Federal programs, which consist of the following:
Conseclidated Grants, Food & Nutrition, Special
Education, Headstart, and Childcare Services.

Each major program will be internally audited
once a year. The four internal audits will be
conducted in an independent environment, as these
internal reports will be communicated directly to
the Board of Education, Office of +the Public
Auditor, and the external auditors.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IIT1 — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Special Tests and Provisions - Special Education Program

Finding No.

02-17

CFDA no.

84.027

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria

PSS shall ensure that, in accordance with the
requirements and §300.454 — 300.456, a service
plan is developed and implemented for each
private school child with a disability that has
heen designated to receive special education and
other related services.

Under this plan, PSS shall consult with the
representatives of private school children in
deciding how to conduct the annual count of the
number of private school children with
disabilities and ensure that count is conducted
on December 1 or the last Friday of Octcber each
year.

Condition
PS8 did not develop a service plan for its
implementation on private schools.

Cause

The cause of the above condition is due to non-
adherence to the requirements of the CNMI State
Plan and federal regulations.

Effect

The services to be provided to eligible private
school children may not be properly identified
and carried out by PSS.

Recommendation
I recommend PSS to comply with the State plan to
ensure that all federal requirements are met.

Prior Year Status

The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audits of fiscal yeaxrs 2000 and 2001.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION TII — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Special Education Program

Finding No. 02-17, Continued

CFDA no.

84.027

Findings/Noncompliance

Auditee Regponse and Corrective Action Plan
PSS conocurs. Since the hiring of additional

Federal monitor has proven very difficult to
implement, the Public School has decided to
implement its own internal monitoring program.
An audit program will be prepared and implemented
by the 1Internal Auditor of PSS with the
assistance of +the Comptroller of the Fiscal =&
Budget Office. They will Jjointly audit the major
Federal programs, which consist of the following:
Consolidated Grants, TFood & MNutrition, Special
Education, Headstart, and Childcare Services.

Each major program will be internally audited
once a year. The four internal audits will be
conducted in an independent environment, as these
internal reports will be communicated directly to
the Board of Education, OQffice of the Public
Auditor, and the external auditors.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINMDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Special Education Program

Finding Ne. 02-18

Questioned
CFDA no,: Findings/Noncompliance Costs
g4.027 S -

Criteria

In accordance with the CHNMI Special Education
Program 2001-2002 State Plan and as required by
34 CFR §300.152, it is the policy of the Public
School System to develop and implement
interagency agreements between the Publiec School
System and all other CHMI agencies that provide
or pay for services regquired under the State Plan
for children with disabilities. As stated in the
State Plan, *“the CNMI currently has interagency
agreements (sometimes referred to as Memoranda of
Understanding) with Vocational Rehabilitation
Services, the Division of Youth Services, Head
Start, and the Center for ¢hild and Family
Guidance (Department of Public Health) which
pertain to Part B services.”

Condition

There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU)
established with the Division of Youth Services
for the year 2001. As justified by PSS, the MOU

expired September 30, 1999, No MOU was
considered necessary after this date because PSS
performs services for the D¥S at no charge. No

consideration was exchanged between the +two
parties, ©DYS3 and PSS, therefore no MOU is
required.

PSS failed to update and make the necessary
changes on the documentation of their plans and
programs identified in the State Plan.

Cause

The cause of the above condition is lack of
administrative oversight to ensure that all the
necessary changes or any updates on their plans
and programs are timely and properly documented
in the State Plan.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III -- FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Special Tests and Provisions — Special Education Program

Finding No. 02-18, Continued

CFDA no.:

B4.027

Findings/Noncompliance

Effect

The effect of +the above condition is that the
Special Education Program  may be wrongly
construed as not in adherence to the State Plan
and federal regulations.

Recommendation

The Special Education Program should update and
make the necessary changes on documenting their
plans and programs identified in the State Plan.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
Since the hiring of additional Federal monitor

has proven wvery difficult +to implement, the
Public School has decided to implement its own
internal monitoring program. An audit program
will be prepared and implemented by the Internal
Buditor of P38 with the assistance of the
Comptroller of the Fiscal & Budget Office. They
will Jjointly audit the major Federal programs,
which consist of the following: Consolidated
Grants, Food & MNutrition, Special Education,
Headstart, and childcare Services.

Each major program will be internally audited
once a year. The four internal audits will be
conducted in an independent environment, as these
internal reports will be communicated directly to
the Board of Directors, OQffice of the Public
Auditor, and the external auditors.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III -- FEDERAT, AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Head Start Program
Finding No, 02-19

CFDA no.

93.600

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria

Based on +the state plan of the Head Start
Program, the ten percent (10%) limitation on
children from families whose income exceeds the
quidelines will be maintained as well as the ten
percent (10%) target for children with
disabilities.

Condition
PS8 lacks management oversight that would ensure
compliance with +the above criterion. In

addition, PSS lacks the necessary system and
procedures that will provide concrete data and
statistics regarding children with disabilities.

Cause

The cause of the above condition can be
attributed mainly to the long-standing vacancy
for the position of the Disabilities Services
Manager.

Effect

PSS is designated deficient as the grantee agency
of the Head Start Program by the Administration
for Children and Families {ACF).

Recommendation
PS5 should actively pursue recruitment for the
Disabilities Services Manager. A system must

likewise be established that will warrant
compliance with the above criterion even with the
absence of a Disabilities Services Manager.

Prigor Year Status

The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audit of fiscal year 2001.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION ITT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIQONED COSTS
Special Tests and Provisions - Head Start Program

Finding No. 02-19, Continued

CFDA no, Findings/Noncompliance
93,600

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
PSS had Jjust recently hired a Disabilities

Service Manager. This corrective action would
help to ensure that program requirements such as
stated above are complied with. Also, the

necessary system and procedures that will provide
concrete data and statistics regardinhg children
with disabilities would be properly established.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions ~ Headstart Program

Finding No.

02~290

CEDA no.s

93.600

Findings/Nongcompliance

Criteria

Head Start’s educational program is designed to
meet the needs of each child, the community
served, and its ethnic and cultural
characteristics.

Every child receives a variety of learning
experiences to foster intellectual, social and
emotional growth. Head Start also emphasizes the
importance of the early identification of health
problems, Every «c¢hild 1is involved in a
comprehensive health program, which includes
immunizations, medical, dental, mental health and
nutritional services.

Condition

PSS has uwnavailable regular services from
specialists such as Ophthalmologists and Mental
Health Psychologists. Patients are referred only
when necessary immediately following the free
physical examination required before registering
for Head Start. Parents are then responsible for
any other expenses incurred during specialized
treatment or follow-up services, Specialized
dental health services for children with
disabilities are not also available locally.

Cause

This was cited as additional demographic problems
related to Head Start Operations on the Program
Description for the year 2002,

Effect

This is non-compliance of the federal requirement
under Head Start Serwvices.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

3chedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION ITT — FEDERAT, AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions ~ Headstart Program

Finding No. 02-20, Continued

CFDA no.:

93.600

Findings/Noncompliance

Recommendation

P85 should ensure that each eligible participants
of the Head Start program have all the services
they are entitled to receive.

Prior Year Status
The above condition has been reported as findings
since fiscal years 1998 through 2001.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
Since the hiring of additional Federal monitor

has proven very difficult +to implement, the
Public School has decided to implement its own
internal monitoring program. An audit program
will be prepared and implemented by the Internal
Auditor of P8S with the assistance of the
Comptroller of the Fiscal & Budget Office. They
will Jointly audit the major Federal programs,
which consist of +the following: <Consolidated
Grants, Food & Nutrition, Special Education,
Headstart, and Childecare Services.

Each major program will be internally audited
once a year. The four internal audits will be
conducted in an independent environment, as these
internal reports will be communicated directly to
the Beoard of Education, ©Office of +the Public
Auditor, and the external auditors.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION IIT — FEDERAT AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provigsions - Headstart Program

Finding No.

02-21

CFDA no,.:

Findings/Noncompliance

93.600

Criteria

Head Start-.-promotes school readiness by enhancing
the social and ceognitive development of low-
income children, including children on federally
recognized reservations and children of migratory
farm workers, through the provision of
comprehensive health, educaticnal, nutritional,
social and other services. One basic requirement
for admitting Head Start applicants is to conduct
initial screening of all applicants, including
children with disabilities in order to identify
potential health problems or special needs that
may be required by each child.

Condition

The initial screening for children with
disabilities is conducted by Head Start staff who
may lack the necessary competence and experience
in handling the process.

Cause

PSS lacks the system that will gear them towards
meeting its objectives and compliance with the
appropriate federal requirements.

Effect

The effect of the above condition is possible
non-compliance with the existing terms of the
Head Start program.

Recommendation

PSS should adopt &a system and establish the
necessary leadership that will ensure compliance
with federal requirements and the smooth
operations of its Head Start Program.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
PSS had just recently hired a Health &

Disabilities Coordinator. One of its
responsibilities is to coordinate the process of
assessing children, including the initial

screening to determine if a disability exists.
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PUBLIC SCHOCL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions — Childcare Development Block Grant

Finding No.

02-~-22

CFDA no.:

93.575

Findings[Noncomgliance

Criteria

Payment to childcare providers is made based upon
the approved provider‘s monthly billing. The Pss
will issue payment to the vendor within the ten
working days of the receipt of the request for
payment by PSS’ Fiscal & Budget Office. If the
proposed provider is not 1licensed then that
provider must secure the appropriate license from
the CNMI Department of Community & cCultural
Affairs, which iz mandated by PL 4-67 to license
all day care providers.

Condition

As of September 30, 2002, the regulations imposed
on childcare providers were still in draft
format. This could imply that there is no clear
basis on the PSS to issue payments to the current
childcare providers, as they cannot be fully
regarded as approved providers since the day care
rules and regulations are not yet promulgated.

Cause
The cause of the above condition is unknown.

Effect

Some day care providers may not be eligible to
operate if there are no promulgated rules and
regulations to comply with,

Recommendation

PS5 should coordinate with the Department of
Community and Cultural Affairs in ensuring that
child care provider regulations has already been
adopted and approved for implementation.

Prior Year Status
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audit of fiscal year 2001.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002

SECTION ITIT - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions — Childcare Development Block Grant

Finding No. 02.22, Continued

CFDA no.:

93.575

Findings/Noncompliance

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan
PSS did not fail to collaborate with DCCA in

promulgating day care rules. In 1992, PSS
developed a day care rules and regulations, gave
the rules to DCCA, but DCCA failed to go through
the process of having the rules promulgated.
Through technical assistance provided to PSS
Child Care program by the Child Care Bureau, it
was defined and clarified that DCCA never had any
standards or regulations.

Total Questioned Costs
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

2001 Audit Findings
Finding No. 01-1

Condition: Tt appears that PSS does not ‘adequately monitor adherence to

its
travel policies. Following are the results of the examination performed:
4. 1 out of 7 travel requests examined was not submitted within ten
working days prior to commencement of travel.
b. 4 out of 7 travel vouchers examined were not submitted within ten

working days upon completion of travel.
c. 2 out of 7 samples tested were not automatically deducted the amount
due from payroll for untimely liquidation of travel advance.

Recommendation: PSS should strictly enforce its established policies and
procedures in collecting unliquidated travel advances,

Current Status: Unresolved. To date, +the Company has not been able to
adequately monitor adherence to its travel policies. The same condition was

identified as Finding No. 02-01 for financial statements.

Finding No. 01-2

Condition: pss’ balance sheet of general fund as of September 30, 2001 was not

balanced. Total assets exceeded total liabilities and fund equity by $55,938,

This amount was adjusted to miscellaneous exXpenses to correct the balance of the
financial statements of P3s.

Recommendation: PSS should consider updating or modifying the design of their
current financial management system based on the needs of the organization.

This would help the employees on their assigned tasks and generate the desired
output for the end users.

Current Status: Unresolved. During FY 2002, PSS’ general fund general ledger

was not balanced by $66,030. This condition was noted as Finding No. 02-2 for
financial statements.

Finding No. 01-3

Condition: Expenditures pertaining to this program are well supported but psg
failed to adhere to the requirements of the State Plan. There was no proper
monitoring of the activities held during the year, no records were maintained on
the number of meetings held, the number of parents receiving the training and
type of training provided for the fiscal year 2001.

Recommendation: The SEA should enforce existing internal policies

and
Procedures and comply with the requirements of the State Plan.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the fiscal
Year 2002 audit as Finding No. 02-3.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 01-4

Condition: Eligibility test for the Nutrition Assistance Program showed the
following:

&. 9 or 36% of the participants tested have only one paycheck as proof of income
attached to the application form.

b. 4 or 16% of the participants, who are food stamp recipients, do not have a
photocopy of the Food Stamp I.D. card attached to the NaPp recipient form to show
independent verification of this number.

€. 1 or 4% of the participants did not indicate the Food Stamp ID card, and no
copy of the card was attached to the application form.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, the Nutrition Assistance Program
had +total program expenditures of $3,754,008. Dollar amounts of questioned
costs directly related to this finding could not be ascertained.

Recommendation: PSS should develop policies and monitoring procedures to ensure
that all of the necessary documentation are received before a participant is
enrolled in the Food and Wutrition Assistance Program.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the fiscal
year 2002 audit as Finding No. 02-4.

Finding No. 01-5

Condition: Eligibility test for the Childcare & Development Block Grant showed
the following:

8. 5 applicants or 20% of those tested do¢ not have copy of birth certificates or
passports to verify their citizenship.

b. 3 applicants or 12% of those tested do not have birth certificates to proof
that children were under the age of 13,

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, the Childcare Development Block
Grant had total program expenditures of 51,313,743. Dollar amounts of
questioned costs directly related to this finding could not be ascertained.

Recommendation: PSS should develop internal control policies and monitoring
procedures to ensure that all of the necessary documentation is received before
a child is enroclled in the Childcare Program.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the fiscal
year 2002 as Finding No. 02-5.

Finding No. 01-6

Condition: Eligibility test for the Headstart program showed the following:

a. 25%, or 5 out of 20 files tested had missing birth certificates or passports.
b. 10%, or 2 out of 20 files tested did not have dates on the application.

C. 30%, or 6 out of 20 files tested had no income verification.

d. 60%, or 12 out of 20 files tested had missing health certificate.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding Mo. 0l1-6, Continued

Recommendation: Records showed +that no medical and dental screening and
examinations were provided for each child enrolled in the Head Start program.
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, the Head Start program had total
program expenditures of $1,299,815.

Current Year Status: Unresolved.

Finding No., 01-7

I

Condition: PSS does not prepare an annual report that details the progress
toward meeting its geals/objectives.

Recommendation: PSS should adopt a system that will ensure compliance with the
grant terms and conditions.

Current Year Status: Unrescglved. The same condition was identified in the 2002
Single Audit as Finding No. 02-6.

Finding No. 01-8

Condition: PSS failed to submit an annual report to the U.S. Department of
Education.

Recommendation: The S$EA should adopt a system that will ensure compliance with
the recquirements of the State Plan.

Current Year Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified as Finding
No. 02-7 in the 2002 Single Audit.

Finding No. 01-9
Review of the Quarterly Performance reports concerning submission compliance are
noted as follows: '
Date No, of
Submitted days late

Quarter ended
December 31, 2000 03/09/01 37 days

Quarter ended
April 30, 2001 8/29/01 29 days

Quarter ended
Qctober 31, 2001 11/02/01 2 days

Recommendation: I recommend that PSS should adhere to the schedule of federal
reporting deadlines.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified as Finding No.
02-8 in the 2002 Single Audit.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 01-10

Condition: The CNMI/PSS did not comply within the period required for the
submission of annual Single Audit of the Nutrition Assistance Grant for fiscal
vear 2001, which was due no later than June 30, 2002,

Recommendation: I recommend the annual Single Audit be contracted prier to
year-end.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the Single
Audit of fiscal year 2002 ag Finding No. 02-9.

Finding No. 01l-11
Condition: PSS failed to comply with the submission of the annual report.

Recommendation: PSS should comply with the reporting requirements of the
Childeare funds.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the Single
Audit of fiscal year 2002 as Finding No. 02-10.

Finding No. 01-12
Condition: HNo evaluation was performed for the activities mentioned above.

Recommendation: The SEA should enforce existing internal policies and
procedures and comply with the requirements of the State Plan.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the Single
Budit of fiscal year 2002 as Finding No. 02-11.

Finding No. 01-13

Condition: Reports were not maintained to document the activities under +the
Comprehensive Student Achievement & Participation Program.

Recommendation: PSS should adopt a system that will ensure compliance with the
grant terms and conditions.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the Single
Audit of fiscal year 2002 as Finding No. 02-12,

Finding Neo. 01-14

Condition: PSS did not conduct any evaluation of the programs to ensure its
effectiveness in meeting the program’'s purposes and obijectives.

Recommendation: PSS should assign a Federal Program Qfficer (or egquivalent) in
monitoring and providing assistance on the institutions that carry out the
programs under this grant and evaluate the effectiveness of these programs in
meeting the purposes and objectives of this grant.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the Single
Audit of fiscal year 2002 as Finding No. 02-13,
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 01-15

Condition: PSS does not maintain an inventory of materials sent to the schools,
This iz based on the terms and conditions stated on the State Plan regarding the .
local use of funds.

Recommendation: PSS should adopt a system that will ensure compliance with the
grant terms and conditions.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the Single
Audit of fiscal year 2002 as Finding No. 02-14.

Finding No. 0l-16

Condition: TFor the fiscal year 2001, PS5 conducted only one site visit during
the second quarter.

Recommendation: PSS should establish a system in place that will ensure
compliance with the grant terms and conditions, as well as to facilitate a
smooth flow of program operations.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the Single
Audit of fiscal year 2002 as Finding Ne. 02-15.

Finding No. 01-17

Condition: Pss wés not able to provide the Annual Child Count for the vyear
2001.

Recommendation: PS8 should establish procedures to ensure that all reguirements
on the Federal requlations and activities or services to be performed as stated
on the State Plan are all complied with.

Current Status: The same condition was identified in the Single Audit of fiscal
year 2002 as Finding No. 02-16.

Finding No. 01-18

Condition: There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU} established with the
Division of Youth Services for the yeax 2001. As justified by PSS, the MOU
expired September 30, 1999, No MOU was considered necessary after this date
because PSS performs services for the DYS at no charge. No consideration was
exchanged between the two parties, DYS and PSS, therefore no MOU is required.
PS8 failed to update and make the necessary changes on the documentation of
their plans and programs identified in the State Plan.

Recommendation: The Special Education Program should update and make the
necesgsary changes on documenting their plans and programs identified in the
State Plan.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the 2002 audit
report as Finding No. 02-18.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 01-19

Condition: PSS did not develop a service plan for its implementation on private
schools.

Recommendation: PSS should establish internal control policies and procedures
to ensure compliance with federal requirements.

Current Status: Unresoclved. The same condition was identified in the 2002
fiscal year audit as Finding No. 02-17.

Finding No. 01-20

Condition: PSS was not able to provide a repert that would wverify an analysis
of CNMI needs for professional development was conducted during the year.

Recommendation: PSS was not able to provide a report that would verify an
analysis of CNMI needs for professiocnal development was conducted during the
year.

Current BStatus: Resclved. PSS hired a CSPD Coordinator, Josephine Mesa, in
January of 2001. Ms. Mesa has conducted an analysis of CNMI needs for
professional development for personnel to serve children with disabilities.
This can be seen in the Eligibility Document 2002, Continuous Improvement
Monitoring Process (CIMP Report).

Finding No. 01-21

Condition: There were no site visits made to selected schools to review IEP's
during the fiscal vyear ended September 30, 2001. Therefore, +the State
Educational Agency did not comply with the terms set forth in the 2000-2001
State Plan and as required by 34 CFR §300.146.

Recommendation: The SEA should enforce existing internal policies and
procedures and comply with the reguirements of the State Plan.

Current Status: Unresolved. For FY 2002, PSS was able to conduct site visits
on selected schools on reviewing their IEP’s.

FPinding No. 01-22

Condition: As of September 30, 2001, the regulations imposed on childcare
providers were still in draft format. This could imply that there is no clear
basis on the PSS to issue payments to the current childcare providers, as they
cannot be fully regarded as approved providers since the day care rules and
regulations are not yet promulgated.

Recommendation: PS8 should coordinate with the Department of Community and
Cultural Affairs in ensuring that child care provider regulations has already
been adopted and approved for implementation.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same conditicon was identified in the Single
Audit of fiscal year 2002 as Finding No. 02-22.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 01-23

Condition: PSS lacks management oversight that would warrant compliance with
the criteria in meeting the needs of each child. In addition, PSS lacks the
necessary system and procedures that will provide concrete data and statistics
regarding children with disabilities.

Recommendation: PSS should actively pursue recruitment for the Disabilities
Services Manager. A system should be established to ensure compliance with the
above criterion even with the absence of a Disabilities Services Manager.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was  identified in the 2002
audit report as Finding No. 02-19.

Finding No., 01-24

Condition: During SY 2001-2002, P88 failed to maintain the teacher/pupil ratio
of 1:20. Actual teacher/pupil ratio during 2001 was 1:21.

Recommendation: PS5 should adopt a system that will effectively monitor
compliance of PSS with the required ratio of pupils to teacher/teacher aide.

Current Status: Unresolved.
Finding No, 01-25

Condition: PSS does not have regular services available from specialists such
as Ophthalmologists and Mental Health Psychologists. Patients are referred only
when necessary immediately following the free physical examination required
before registering for Head Start. Parents are then responsible for any other
expenses incurred during specialized treatment or follow-up services.
Specialized dental health services for children with disabilities are not alsc
available locally.

Recommendation: PSS should ensure that each eligible participants of the Head
Start program have all the services they are entitled to receive.

Current Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the Single
Audit of FY 2002 as Finding No. 02-20.

2000 Audit Findings

Finding Ne. 00-3

Condition: It appears that PSS does not adeqguately monitor adherences to its
travel policies. As of fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, PSS outstanding
travel advances was $552,799 of which significant amount pertains to prior

years.

Recommendation: P35 should strictly enforce its established policies and

-procedures in collecting unliquidated travel advances.

Current Year Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified as
Finding No. 02-1 for financial statements in the Single audit of FY 2002,
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 00-8

Condition: PS8’ balance sheet of general and special fund as of September 30,
2000 was not balanced., The difference noted on one fund was traced and located
from the other fund.

Recommendation: PSS should consider updating or modifying the design of their
current financial management system based on the needs of the organization.
This would help the employees on their assigned tasks and generate the desired
output for the end users.

Current Year Status: Unresolved. This condition was noted as Finding No.
02-2 for financial statements in the Single Audit of fiscal year 2002.

Finding No. 00-9

Condition: Expenditures pertaining +o Consolidated Grant Program are well
supported but PSS failed to adhere to the requirements of the State Plan. There
was no proper monitoring of the activities held during the year, no records were
maintained on the number of meetings held, the number of parents receiving the
training and type of training provided for the fiscal year 2000.

Recommendation: PSS as the State Educational Agency should enforce existing
internal policies and procedures and comply with the requirements of the State
Plan.

Current Year Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the
fiscal year 2002 audit as Finding No. 02-03. PSS is currently actively pursuing
the recruitment of a federal programs officer who will be responsible for
monitoring all federal grant reguirements.

Finding No. 00-10

Condition:
Eligibility test for the Nutrition Assistance Program produced the following
results:

a. 6 participants or 24% of the participants tested have only one paycheck as
proof of income attached to the application form.

b. 7 participants or 28% of the participants, who are food stamp recipients, do
not have a photocopy of the Food Stamp I.D. card attached to the Nap
recipient form to show independent verification of this number.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the Nutrition Assistance Grant
program had total program expenditures of $3,756,184. Dollar amounts of
guestioned costs directly related to this finding could not be ascertained.

Recommendation: PSS should develop policies and monitoring procedures to
ensure that all of the necessary documentation is received before a child is
enrolled in the Nutrition Assistance Grant Program.

Current Year Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the
fiscal year 2002 audit as Finding No. 02-04.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYETEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 00-11

Condition: Eligibility test for the Child Care and Development Block Grant
showed the following:

¢. 7 applicants or 28% do not have copy of birth certificates or passports to
verify their citizenship

d. 6 applicants do not have birth certificates to proof that children were under
the age of 13,

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the Childcare Development Block
Grant had total program expenditures of $825,712. Dollar amounts of questioned
costs directly related to this finding could not be ascertained.

Recommendation: PSS should develop policies and monitoring procedures to
ensure that all of the necessary documentation is received before a child is
enrolled in the Childcare Program.

Current Year Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the
fiscal year 2002 audit as Finding No. 02-05.

Finding No. 00-14

Condition: For its Consolidated Grant Program, PSS failed to submit the annual
report to U.S Department of Education.

Recommendation: PSS should comply with this requirement and implement a system
to ensure that all their responsibilities as both a State Educational Agency
{SEA) and Local Educational Agency (LEA) are performed.

Current Year Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the
fiscal year 2002 audit as Finding No. 02-07.

Finding No. 00-15

Condition: Review of the Quarterly Performance reports concerning submission
compliance for the Nutrition Assistance Program are noted as follows:

Date No. of
Submitted days late

Quarter ended

December 31, 1999 03/28/00 56 days
Quarter ended
September 30, 2000 03/09/01 129 days
Recommendation: I recommend that PSS should adhere to schedule of federal

reporting deadlines.

Current Year Status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified in the
fiscal year 2002 avdit as Finding No. 02-08.
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PUBLIC SCHQOL SYSTEM
Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002
Finding No. 00-16
Condition: The CNMI/PSS has not complied within the period required for the

submission of annual Single Audit of the Nutrition Assistance Grant for fiscal
year 2000.

Recommendation: I recommend the annual Single Audit be contracted prior to
year-end.
Current Year Status: Unresolved. The same condition was noted in the fiscal

year 2002 audit as Finding No. 02-9.
Finding No. 00-17

Condition: PSS failed to comply with the submission of annual report for its
Child care and Development Block Grant.

Recommendation: PS5 should comply with the reporting requirements of the
Childcare funds.

Current Year Status: Unresolved. The same condition was noted in the fiscal
year 2002 audit as Finding No. 02-10.

Finding No. 00-18

Condition: P38 did not conduct any evaluation of the programs under the
Consolidated Grant Program to ensure its effectiveness in meeting its purposes
and objectives.

Recommendation: P55 should assign one Federal Program Officer in monitoring
and providing assistance on the institutions that carry out the programs under
this grant and evaluate the effectiveness of these programs in meeting the
purposes and cbjectives of this grant.

Current Year Status: Unresolved.

Finding No. 00-19

Condition: Under the Special Education Program, no service plan was developed
and implemented for each private school child with a disability that has been

designated to received special education and other related services.

Recommendation: I recommend PSS to comply with the State plan to ensure that
all federal requirements are met.

Current Year Status: Unresolved.
Finding No. 00-20

Condition: PSS was not able to provide the Annual Child Count for its Special
Education Program in the year 2000.

Recommendation: I recommend PSS to ensure that all requirements on the Federal

regulations and activities or services to be performed as stated on the State
Plan are all complied with.
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 PUBL.IC SCHOOL SYSTEM

summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 00-20, Contihued

Current Year Status: Unresolved. For Fiscal year 2001, an annual child count
was established as seen in the 22" Annual Report Congress.

Finding No. 00-21
Condition: PSS was not able to provide a report that would verify an analysis
of CNMI needs for professional development was conducted during the year under

its Special Education Program.

Recommeridation: PSS should ensure that all reguirements as stated in the State
Plan are complied with.

Current Year Status: Unresolved.

Finding No. 00-22

Condition: There were no site visits made to selected schools to review IEP's
during +the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000. Therefore, the State
BEducational Agency did not comply with the terms set forth in the 2000-2001
Special Education Program’s State Plan and as required by 34 CFR §300.146.

Recommendation: The SEA should enforce existing internal pelicies and
procedures and comply with the requirements of the State Plan.

Current Year Status: Unresolved.

Finding No. 00-23

Condition: There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) established with the
Division of Youth Services for the year 2000. The MOU with the Center for Child
and Family CGuidance was implemented on October 1, 1996 but did not have an
annual review performed as stipulated.

Recommendation: The Special Education Program should comply with the
reguirements of the CNMI State Plan and federal regulations by signing MoU's
with appropriate agencies and conduct annual reviews as stipulated on their
agreements.

Current Year Status: Unresolved.

Finding No. 00-24

Condition: Records showed that no medical and dental screening and examinations
were provided for each child enrolled in the Head Start program.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the Head Start program had total
program expenditures of $1,237,018.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 00-24, Continued

Recommendation: PSS should develop policies and monitoring procedures to
ensure that all of the necessary documentation is received before a child is
enrclled in the Head Start Program. Furthermore, PSS should establish stringent
pelicies and controls to ensure that all children in the Head Start program
receive timely and complete medical and dental evaluations as required by 45 CFR
§1304.3-3 and the CNMI Head Start General Health Services Written Plan, FY 2000-
0l.

Current Year Status: Unresolved.
Finding No. 00-25

Condition: PSS has wunavailable regular services from specialists such as

Ophthalmologists and Mental Health Psychologists, Patients are only referred
only when necessary immediately following the free physical examination required
before registering for Head Start. Parents are then responsible for any other
expenses  incurred during specialized treatment or follow-up services.
Specialized dental health services for children with disabilities are not also
available locally.

Recommendation: PS8 should ensure that each eligible participants of the Head
Start program have all the services they are entitled to receive.

Current Year Status: Unresolved.

1999 Findings

Finding No. 99-9

Condition: It appears that PSS does not adequately monitor adherences to its
travel policies. As of fiscal year ended September 30, 1999, PSS outstanding
travel advances were $508,212, of which, a significant amount pertains to prior
years.

Recommendation: PSS should strictly enforce its established policies and
procedures in collecting unliquidated travel advances,

Current status: Unresolved. To date, the Company has not been able to
adequately monitor adherence to its travel policies.

Finding No. 99-13

Condition: The files that were examined were provided by the Special Education

(SPED) Central Office and reviewed on the premises, Generally, the files
appeared incomplete, disorganized, and lacking in attention to detail. Many
documents were incomplete or altogether missing. Those documents that were

present were generally lacking a combination of required signatures, complete
and relevant dates, correct student date of birth, and check boxes that were
marked.

25 files were reviewed.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 99-13, Continued

Although fourteen of the 25 files were on students with disabilities that had
been in the program prior to 1999, four of those files contained complete
information so it can reasonably be assumed that the documentation of
eligibility determination did not significantly change from one state plan to
the next. Consequently, all 25 files were audited for the stated criteria.
Specific information is as follows:

a) Thirteen files or 52% of the 25 files did not contain the annual TEP as
required by the 1997-1999 State Plan and 34 CFR §300.342.

b) Sixteen files or 64% of the 25 files lacked a properly documented Referral.

¢) Eight files or 32% of the 25 files had incomplete or missing Permissien to
Test and/or Release of Information forms.

d) Twelve files or 48% of the 25 files had incomplete or missing documentation
of initial CST Meetings.

€) Fourteen €files or 56% of the 25 files had missing Eligibility Meeting
documents or the Eligibility Meeting was not held within the designated
timeline for final assessment of student disability.

Recommendation: Recommendations include adherence to established policies and
procedures, increased administrative oversight, the use of standardized forms,
following the State Plan and applicable federal regulations, developing a
checklist to. be included in each student file, and following a set
organizational scheme for the documents in the student files to facilitate easy
retrieval. ’

Current Status: Unresolved. With the implementation of the school wvisits to
review IEP's, the individual students files will be complete and organized., The
central office files will be reviewed, completed and crganized in an efficient
manner. A checklist for the content of each fill will be developed and used to
monitor and assure that the files are complete and organized. School principals
will be given a memo describing the condition of +the student files and
corrective action measure if needed to correct the deficiencies.

Finding No. 99-14

Condition: There were no site visits made to selected schools to review IEP’s
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999, Therefore, +the State
Educational Agency (SEA) did not comply with the terms set forth in the 1997-
1999 sState Plan and as required by 34 CFR §300.146.

Recommendation: The State Educational Agency (SEA) should enforce existing
internal policies and procedures and comply with the requirements of the State
Plan.

Current Status: Unresolved. As indicated on the auditee’s response and
corrective plan, site visits will be conducted to review the IEP’s on a cyclical
basis. Two schools per month will be reviewed and it would be the data clerk

who will determine the selection of the schools. Consideration as to the size
and number of students per school will determine the review schedule. Reviews
are scheduled to begin in September 2002 through May 2003.
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Finding No. 99-15

Condition: There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) established with the
Division of Youth Services for the year 2000, The MOU with the Center for Child
and Family Guidance was implemented on October 1, 1996 but did not have an
annual review performed as stipulated. It was not reviewed and updated until
January 31, 1999.

Recommendation: The Special Education Program should comply with the
requirements of the CNMI State Plan and federal regulations by signing MoU's
with appropriate agencies.

Current Status: Unresolved. As indicated on its auditee’s response and
corrective action plan, the CNMI Eligibility Document (formerly referred to as
the State Plan) was submitted to the US Qffice of Special Education in June 2002
for review and approval. All required interagency agreements as stipulated in
the Eligibility Document and Procedure Manual will be developed and implemented.
The same condition was identified as Finding No. 01-19 in the fiscal year 2001
audit report.

Finding No. 99-16

Condition: The Special Education Program was unable to provide the respective
SESAP and Special Education Program annual reports for the 199§-1999 school
year.

Recommendation: The Special Education Program and the Special Education State
Advisory Panel should comply with the requirements set forth in the CNMI State
Plan and federal requlations

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced effort will be made to ensure PSS complies
with the requirements set forth in the CNMI State and Federal regulations.

Finding No. 99-18

Condition: a. Fifteen files or 60% of the 25 files had incomplete or missing
health records.
b. Two files or 8% of the 25 files did not have dates on the
application.
¢. ©One file or 4% of the 25 files had no income verification.

Recommendation: PSS should establish stringent policies and controls to ensure
that all children in the Head Start program receive timely and complete medical
and dental evaluations as required by 45 CFR §1304.3-3 and the CNMI Head Start
Genexal Health Services Written Plan, FY 1998-99. Furthermore, PSS should
develop policies and monitoring procedures to ensure that all of the necessary
documentation is received before a child is enrolled in the Head Start Program.

Current Status: Unresolved. As identified on its auditee's response and
corrective plan, enhanced effort to monitor all necessary documentation of each
child enrolled within the Headstart program. A memorandum dated April 2002 was
issued to program managers enforcing administrative compliance, participants
receiving this program are to be monitored, reviewed and updated annually.
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Finding No. 99-22

Condition: Ten disbursements or 23% of 43 disbursements tested were travel
advances that were not liquidated in accordance with PSS policy.

Date Rate

of of
travel liguidation APV # Amount
05/22/98 06/02/99 1646 $ 15,00
06/18/98 06/02/99 1638 140.00
07/09/98 06/02/99 1636 1,305.95
02/10/98 06/02/99 1639 85.00
06/16/98 06/02/799 1640 85,00
12/09/97 06/02/99 1644 15.00
06/30/98 06/03/99 1666 15.00
01/30/98 06/02/99 1625 1,745.00
08/03/98 06/02/99 1627 315.00
04/26/98 06/02/99 1637 1,063,55

Total  $ 4,784.50

Recommendation: PSS’'s travel policy should be strictly enforced and all Travel
Advances that are not liquidated within 15 days should be investigated
immediately.

Current Status: Unresolved.
Finding No. 99-26
Condition: The cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 relating to 1999
grant as of September 30, 1999 shows variance when compared to the general
ledger as follows:

Total expenditures per SF-269

{org. 5901, 5902, 5903, 5904,
5905, 5906, 5907, 5909, 5910,

5912 and 5919) 3 2,325,224
Total expenditures per general

ledger for same organization 2,402,689
Variance $_ (77,465)

Recommendation: I recommend PSS reconcile records for all amounts reported to
the grantor agency and perform any transfers between grant years on a timely
basis.

Current Status: Unresolved. For fiscal years 2000 to 2002, PSS has taken the
corrective actions to reconcile their records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency. The cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 in FY's 2000 to
2002 ties up with amount in the general ledger.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No, 99-27

Condition: There were no PMS-272's relating to the year ended September 30, 1999
found on file thus adherence to the requirement could not be determined.

Recommendation: PSS should prepare and retain all required federal financial
reports.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were already made in fiscal years
2000 to 2002 in preparing and retaining all required reports. This was
subsequently corrected, as there was no finding identified with +the same
condition in fiscal years 2000 to 2002 audits.

Finding No. 99-28
Condition: The SF-269A expenditures reported for period covering October 1, 1998
to September 30, 1999 relating to the 1998 grant shows variance when compared to

general ledger expenditures as follows:

Total expenditures per SF-269A
(org. 2876, 2877, 2878, 2879

and 2880) $ 925,069
Total expenditures per general
ledger for same orgs __B26,077
‘ 98,992
Prior fiscal year overstatement
of general ledger expenditures 138,992)
s =

Recommendation: PSS should reconcile records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency and perform any transfers between grant years on a timely basis.

Current Status: Unresolved. For the fiscal years 2000 to 2002, PSS has taken
corrective actions to reconcile their records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency. The cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 in 2002 to 2000
ties up with amount in the general ledger.

Finding No, 99-29

Condition: The amounts reported per SF-269 relating to 1998 grant covering
expenditures from October 1, 1998 to September 30, 1999 filed and submitted on
October 18, 1999 noted difference against general ledger as follows:

Expenditures per SF-269 from
October 1, 1998 to September
30, 1999 $ 829,116

Expenditures per general
ledger for orgs 2883, 28B4

and 2885 {825,994)
variance 5 (3,122)
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 9%-29, Continued

Recommendation: PS8 sheould reconcile records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were made in fiscal years 2000 to
2002 to ensure that the amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with
the general ledger. The attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a
supporting document on the financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences
of this condition and would alsc serve for future reference. The cumulative
expenditures reported per SF-269 in fiscal years 2000 to 2001 ties up with
amount in the general ledger.

Finding No. 99-30

Condition: The §F-269 for the second quarter of the 1999 grant covering the
months from January 1999 to March 1999 was filed eight days late. There were no
SF-269 for third and fourth guarter covering period of April 1, 1999 to June 30,
1939 and July 1, 1999 to September 30, 1999, respectively. The cumulative
expenditures of +the annual reports when compared to general ledger shows
variance as follows:

Cumulative expenditures to
September 30, 1999 per SF-269 $ 1,222,697

Cumulative expenditures to
September 30, 1999 per general

ledger for orgs 2981 and 2982 1,187,010
Variance 5 35,687
Recommendation: PSS should adhere to reporting deadlines. I additionally

recommend that transfers between organization within the same grant be minimized
and when considered appropriate, be performed in a timely manner.

Current Status: Unrescolved. Enhanced efforts were made to submit the reguired
financial reports in a timely manner and that the amounts reported to the
grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. In the fiscal years 2000 to
2002 audits, the cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 ties up with amount
in the general ledger and PSS was able to adhere to the reporting deadlines.

Finding No. 99-31

Condition: Variances were noted between the cumulative expenditures reported per
fourth quarter status report (PMS 272-A) and the general ledger as follows:

Total expenditures per PMS 272-A
quarter end for organization 2981
and 2982 $ 1,257,645

Total expenditures per general
ledger for same organization 1,187,010

Variance $§ _ 70,635
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 99-31, Continued

Recommendation: I recommend PSS reconcile records for all amounts reported to
the grantor agency and perform any transfers between grant years on a timely
basis, '

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were subsequently made o ensure
that the amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general
ledger. The attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document
on the financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and
would alsc serve for future reference. In the fiscal years 2000 to 2002 audits,
the cumulative expenditures reported per PMS-272 ties up with amount in the
general ledger.

Finding Ro. 99-32

Condition: The PMS§-272 for the quarter period ending June 30, 1999 was signed
and submitted on August 23, 1999 (nine days late). The total expenditures show
variance when compared to general ledger as follows:

Total reported expenditures
for 1999 relating to 1998
grant (organization 2881

and 2882) $ 110,248
Total expenditures per general

ledger for same organization 7,116
Variance $.103,132

Recommendation: I recommend PSS reconcile records for all amounts reported to
the grantor agency and perform any transfers between grant years on a timely
basis.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were subsequently made to ensure
that the amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general
ledger and submitted in compliance with the reporting requirement. The
attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference. Iin the fiscal years 2000 to 2002 audits, the
cumulative expenditures reported per PMS-272 agrees with amount in the general
ledger and timely submission of the reports was adhered to.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 99-33

Condition: Variances were noted between the program expenditures for the
Childcare and Development Block Grant per the fourth guarter status report and
the general ledger as follows:

Taotal 1999 expenditures
relating te 1998 grant
{(organization 2890, 2891,

2894 per ACF-696 and PMB5-272) $ 77,215
Total expenditures per general

ledger for same organization 74,475
Variance s 2,740

Recommendation: PSS should reconcile records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency and perform any transfers between grant years on a timely basis.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were made- to ensure that the
amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. The
attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference. In the fiscal years 2000 to 2002 aundits, the
cumulative expenditures reported per ACF-696 and PMS-272 ties up with amount in
the general ledger. ’

Finding Ho. 99-34

Condition: Review of the PMS reports concerning submission compliance are noted
as follows:

Date Na. of

Submitted days late
PMS5=-272 quarter ended
March 31, 199% June 16, 19%9 32 days
PM5-272 guarter ended
June 30, 1999 August 23, 1999 9 days
PMS~-272 gquarter ended
September 30, 1999 Yovember 22, 1999 8 days

Recommendation: I recommend +that PSS should adhere to schedule of federal
reporting deadlines.

Current Status: Unresolved. Submission of the report was late dne to
unavailability form in the internet. Enhanced effort was made to submit the
PMS-272 on or before the due date. A corrective action was subsequently taken
on this condition in fiscal years 2000 to 2002 , as there was no finding of the
same condition identified during the 2000 to 2002 audits.

Finding No. 9%-35
Conditicn: The ACF~696 for quarter ending June 30, 1999 relating to 1999 grant

was submitted three days late from report deadline.
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Finding No. 99-35, Continued

Recommendation: I recommend +that PSS maintain and adhere to a schedule of
reporting deadlines.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were made to maintain, adhere to
federal reporting requirements and submit finaneial reports in a timely manner.
This was subsequently corrected, as there was no finding of the same condition
identified in the audit years of 2000 to 2002.

1998 Audit Findings

Finding No. 98-3

Condition: In eleven disbhursements or 28% of the forty payroll disbursements
tested, timesheets could not be located on the following:

Date Check_no. Amount
10/07/97 242837 $ 977.02
10/22/97 273710 658.59
11/18/97 246810 356.89
12/17/97 248587 997.06
01/01/98 249761 : 447.72
01/01/98 " 249980 664.72
01/13/98 250856 752.81
01/13/98 251493 369.63
02/25/98 254109 323.5¢0
02/25/98 254128 319.64
03/11/98 255742 1.,046.99

Total $6,914.57

Recommendation: PSS should adhere to established policies and procedures to
ensure that all timesheets are complete and properly accounted for prior to
disbursements.

Current status: Unresolved. This is a document retention problem. When PSS
moved in 2001, some documents were transported to their Lower Base storage and
some were misplaced, Extra efforts are being made to file the supporting

documents promptly. Subseguently, there was no finding identified with the same
condition noted in the fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000 audit.

Finding No. 98-4

Condition: In six disbursements or 15% of the forty payroll disbursements
tested, employment contracts could not be located. .

Recommendation: PSS should adhere to prescribed policies and procedures to
ensure that employment contracts are complete and kept on file.

Current status: Unresolved, PSS will be including an Employee File Checklist

not only to assist in improving the filing system, but will also ensure that PSS
is in compliance with and meeting their policies and procedures.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding Ne. 98-7

Condition: There were no detailed subsidiary ledgers for +travel advances
available for audit as of the fiscal year ended September 306, 1998. The
available detailed subsidiary ledger for travel advances is as of April 1, 1999
amounted to $455,950.

Recommendation: PSS should establish internal control policies and procedures in
maintaining its computer records.

Current status: Unresolved. This is a document retention problem. P58 moved
from Nauru Building to Capitol Hill and some documents were transported to Lower
Base. Enhanced effort was made to maintain subsidiary ledgers on a regular
basis. We have provided the auditors the schedule of travel advances and its
subsidiary ledger for the audit year 199%9 and 2000.

Finding No. 98-%9

Condition: It appears that PSS does not adequately monitor adherences to its
travel policies. As of fiscal year ended September 30, 1998, PSS outstanding
travel advances was $441,170, of which significant amount pertains to prior
years.

Recommendation: PSS should strictly enforce its established policies and
procedures in collecting unliquidated travel advances.

Current status: Unresolved. P35S management has made tremendous efforts to
inform employees of the travel advance policies. A new travel policy dated
August 1,2002 was issued regarding strict enforcement of the travel liquidation.
The policy indicates that 10% of the total travel advances will be withheld and
will be paid out to the traveler only upon liquidation; otherwise, the 10% will
be forfeited. To date, the Company has not been able to adequately monitor
adherence to its travel peolicies.

Finding No. 98-14

Condition: The department has only one employee and there was no employment
contract provided by personnel department.

Recommendation: I recommend that all documents be appropriately retained.

Current status: Unresolved. The contract for Ms. Lilian Bennett was not
included with the Notification of Personnel Actions from a period of two years
from February 12, 1997 to May 1999. An employee file checklist has been
established to keep files in order and to ensure that they are complete with the
proper required decuments.

Finding No. 98-15

Condition: Personal action forms require approval from the Commissioner of
Education. The approval was not present.

Recommendation: I recommend that all documents be properly approved and reviewed
for all required purposes.
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Finding No. 98-1%, Continued

Current status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts will be made to ensure that files
are organized and more complete. An employee file checklist is now required to
be included in the employee’s file to engure that PSS is in compliance and meets
the established policies and procedures.

Finding No. 98-16

Condition: The files that were examined were provided by the Special Education

(SPED) Central 0Office and reviewed on the premises. Generally, the files
appeared incomplete, disorganized, and lacking in attention to detail. Many
documents were incomplete or altogether missing. Those documents that were

present were generally lacking a combination of required signatures, complete
and relevant dates, correct student date of birth, and check boxes that were
marked.

Two files or 8% of the 25 requested files were not available for review. The
two missing files were on students from Rota. Additionally, there was a file on
one student that contained documents from two different pecple with the same
name. There were numerous inconsistencies regarding the date of birth and
identity of the two individuals so the file was turned over to the Special
Education staff for action. There was no additional review performed on that
file.

Although seventeen of the 23 files were on students with disabilities that had
been in the program prior to 1998, six of those files contained complete
information so it can reasonably be assumed that +the documentation of
eligibility determination did not significantly change from one state plan to
the next. Consequently, all remaining 22 files were audited for the stated
criteria. Specific information is as follows:

a) Eight files or 36% of the 22 files did not contain the annual IEP as required
by the 1997-1999 State Plan and 34 CFR §300.342,.

b) Eleven files or 50% of the 22 files lacked a properly documented Referral.

¢) Nine files or 41% of the 22 files had incomplete or missing Permission to
Test and/or Release of Information forms.

d) Thirteen files or 59% of the 22 files had incomplete or missing documentation
of initial Child Study Team (CST) Meetings.

e) Nine files or 41% of the 22 files had missing Eligibility Meeting documents
or the Eligibility Meeting was not held within the designated timeline for
final assessment of student disability.

Recommendation: Adherence to established policies and procedures, increased
administrative oversight, the use of standardized forms, following the State
Plan and applicable federal regulations, developing a checklist to be included
in each student file, and following a set organizational scheme for the
documents in the student files to facilitate easy retrieval.

Current status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts are bheing made to ensure that
established policies and procedures are being adhered to. This was subsequently
corrected, as there was no finding identified with the same condition in the
fiscal years 2002 and 2001 audits.
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Finding No. 98-17

Condition: There were no site visits made to selected schools to review
Individual Educational Plan’s (IEP) during the fiscal year ended September 30,
199%8. Therefore, the State Educational Agency (SEA) did not comply with the
terms set forth in the CNMI 1997-1999 State Plan and as required by 34 CFR
§300.146.

Recommendation: The SEA should enforce existing internal control policies and
procedures and comply with the requirements of the State Plan.

Current Status: Unresolved. As indicated on the auditee’s response and
corrective plan, sites visits will be conducted to review the IEP’s on a
cyclical basis. Two schools per month will be reviewed and it would be the data
clerk who will determine the selection of the schools. Consideration as to the
gsize and number of students per school will determine the review schedule.
Reviews are scheduled to begin in September 2002 through May 2003.

Finding No. 98-18

Condition: There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) established with the
Division of Youth Services for the year 2000. The MOU with the Center for child
and Family Guidance was implemented on October 1, 1996 but did not have an
annual review performed as stipulated; it was not reviewed and updated until
January 31, 1999,

Recommendation: The Special Education Program should comply with the
requirements of the CNMI State Plan and federal regulations by signing MoU's
with appropriate agencies and conduct annual reviews as stipulated in their
agreements. ‘

Current Status: Unresclved. As indicated on its auditee’s response and
corrective action plan, P8S is obligated by federal law to provide services for
any and all children with disabilities in the CNMI free of charge, there is no
federal saying agreements must be signed. If an MOU for a specific student with
a specific agency becomes necessary and there is reasonable expectation to
receive compensation, PSS will draw up an MOU to meet the needs of the student.

Finding No. 98-19

Condition: Two files or 8% of the 25 requested files were not available for
review although all 25 applicants were approved and received childcare
assistance.

a) One applicant (4%) was attending school in California and therefore not
eligible for childcare assistance. Documents were later proved that showed
guardianship for the child had been +transferred to the grandparents but the
application was not amended.

b) One file or 4% out of 23 files was missing proof of income eligibility.

c} Three files or 13% out of 23 files were missing proof of parental
citizenship.

d} One file or 4% out of 23 files was missing proof of age for the child.

e) Eleven files or 48% out of 23 files lacked a signed Certificate and
Confirmation Form.
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Finding Nc. 98-19, Continued

The application form does not contain a space for the name and/or signature of
the individual approving the eligibility of the applicant therefore it was not
possible to determine the level of involvement of the Childcare Coordinator in
the process.

Recommendation: P8&S should develop policies and procedures to ensure that all
documents supporting eligibility are submitted by each applicant. Additionally,
the eligibility application should contain a space for the signature of the
Child cCare Coordinator. The CNMI State Plan dated 10/1/97 — 9/30/99, Part 4
(4.1) states: “The eligibility determination is made by our child care
Coordinator.” The form currently in use leaves in guestion the identity of the
individual that is making the determination of eligibility.

Current status: Unresolved. PSS agrees +to this finding and enhanced effort to
review, monitor and update the files of each recipient on a quarterly or annual
bagis will be made in compliance with the administrative requirements indicated.

Finding No. 98-20

Condition: The list of participant names only included those that were in the
program beginning in BApril 1998 leaving the first six months of the year
unaudited.

a) One participant’s name was on the list two times with two different social
security numbers. All other demographic information indicated that this was
the same person.

b} The file of one participant (whose name was on the master list) was requested
as part of the original 25 files to be reviewed. The auditor was told that
his name was on the list in error and that the applicant had been denied
benefits. .

<) While examining the supporting documents for cash disbursements from the
General Fund, it was noted that there were names of children being submitted
by the childcare providers for reimbursement for childcare services whose
mother’s names were not on the master list of approved participants.

1. One participant had a completed and approved application on file but the
name of the participant was not on the master list.

2. One participant had a completed and approved application on file but the
Certificate and Confirmation Form in the childcare file was not updated
for the dates of service indicated by the invoice submitted by the
childcare provider. The participant’s name was not on the master list,

3. One participant was lacking an application and eligibility documents.
However, the Certificate and Confirmation Form in the childcare file was
current for the time period indicated on the invoice submitted by the
childcare provider. The participant’s name was not on the master list.

Recommendation: PSS should develop policies and procedures to ensure that the
master participant list, applicant files, and childcare provider files are
periodically monitored and reconciled.
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Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 98-20, Continued

Current status: Unresolved. Enhanced effort to review, monitor and update the
files of each recipient on a quarterly or annual basis was made in compliance
with the administrative reguirements indicated. There was no finding of the
same condition identified in the fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000 audits.

Finding No. 98-22

Condition:

a) Four files or 16% of the 25 files requested for review were not available.
b) Eight files or 38% of the 21 files had incomplete or missing health records.
¢) Four files or 19% of the 21 files had no proof of birth.

d) Four files or 19% of the 21 files had no income verification.

Recommendation: PSS should establish stringent policies and controls to ensure
that all children in the Head Start program receive timely and complete medical
and dental evaluations as required by 45 CFR $1304.3-3 and the CNMI Head Start
General Health Services Written Plan, FY 1997-98. Furthermore, PSS should
develop policies and monitoring procedures +to ensure that all of the necessary
documentation is received before a child is enrolled in the Head Start Program.

Current Status: Unresolved. As identified on its auditee's response and
corrective plan, enhanced effort to monitor all necessary documentation of each
child enrolled within the Headstart program. A memorandum dated April 1, 2002
was issued to program managers enforcing administrative compliance, participants
receiving this program are to be monitored, reviewed and updated annually.

Finding No. 98.-28

Condition: In six disbursements or 15% of the 39 disbursements tested, there was
no underlying or supporting documentation to support the transaction.

Date APV # Amount
02/25/98 Unknown § 1,195.00
08/03/98 Unknown 1,050.00
12/18/97 9885400 29.81
12/18/97 988400 101.25
09/24/98 9Re274 5,410.00
06/09/98 984382 420_.00

Total $ 8,206.06

In one disbursement or 3% of the 39 disbursements tested the cancelled check was
missing for the following transaction.

Date APV _# Amount
11/03/97 980465 $ 7,355.15

Recommendation: PSS should establish internal control policies and procedures
over procurement and disbursements to ensure that all transactions are properly
documented. These transactions should be supported by a requisition, purchase
order, invoice, check voucher and receiving report and should be attached and
filed together in a manner to facilitate easy retrieval.

Current status: Unresolved.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002
¥inding No. 98-29

Condition: In eight disbursements or 24% of the 33 disbursements tested, there
was no underlying or supporting documentation to support the transaction.

Date APV # Amount
g5/01/98 00086968 5 3,929.00
08/21/98 211461 1,375.00
12/30/97 988489 24.00
02/03/98 988528 94.00
09/22/98 986246 1,737.34
09/30/98 986451 1,160.600
09/30/98 986619 755.47
09/30/98 986763 519.98

Total $.9.664.79

Recommendation: PSS should establish internal control policies and procedures
over procurement and disbursements to ensure that all transactions are properly
documented. These transactions should be supported by a requisition, purchase
order, invoice, check wvoucher and receiving report and should be attached and
filed together in a manner to facilitate easy retrieval.

Current status: Unresolved.

Finding No. 98-30

'Condition: Two disbursements or 6% of thirty-three disbursements tested were

property items that had not been identified as the property of PSs.

bate P.O.# Check# Amount Description
11/18/97 E80023 81926 $2,097.00 3 ea. White
Westing
Refrigerator

02/26/98 E80404 84675 2,087.00 3 ea. White
Westing
Refrigerator

The twe transactions detailed above were justified with written documentation as
follows:

The memo of justification for the first transaction was dated 10/08/97 and
stated that refrigerators were needed at Headstart Centers in Paupau, Kagman,
and San Antonio Peer with the refrigerator at San Antonio Peer to be replaced.
The receiving report is present and shows that all three refrigerators were
received but does not indicate disposition.

The memo of Jjustification for the second transaction was dated 12/12/97 and
stated that refrigerators were needed at Headstart Centers in Sinapalo, Kagman,
and Dandan with the refrigerator at Dandan to be replaced. The memo further
stated that Kagman desperately needed a refrigerator although one was purchased
specifically for Kagman two months earlier according +te +the memo of
justification dated 10/08/97. The receiving report is present but does indicate
the disposition of the refrigerators.

-111-



PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 98~30, Continued

A subsequent follow-up memo from the Procurement Office to the warehouse that
was written in June 2001 when property records were requested by the auditor
documents that there are only 5 White Westinghouse Refrigerators present in the
Head Start Centers. There 1is no record of the whereabouts of the sixth.
Additionally, there are no property report records of the six refrigerators and
no survey records for the ones taken out of service.

Recommendation: PSS should establish stringent controls and implement written
policies and procedures governing the control over property, eguipment, and
supplies. Annual inventories should be performed and accountability maintained.
Additionally, the Procurement Office and the warehouse receiving areas should be
located closely enough so that management oversight can be handled with ease and
personnel resources utilized in a more efficient manner.

Current status: Unresolved.

Finding No. 98-31

Condition: In one disbursement or 3% of the 33 disbursements tested, the items
that were procured were unnecessary to the maintenance and operation of the

progranm. Two different funeral baskets were purchased: one on 9/15/97 for
$75.00 and the other was 9/5/97 for $47.50.

Date APV # Check # Amount
12/30/97 981316 82911 % 122.50

Recommendation: PSS should establish internal control policies and procedures
over procurement and disbursements to ensure that all transactions are proper,
necessary, and in compliance with established federal regulations.

Current status: Unresolved.

Finding No. 98-33

Condition: The CNMI/PSS has not complied within the peried required for the
submission of annual Single Audit of the Nutrition Assistance Grant for fiscal

year 1998.

Recommendation: We recommend the annual Single Audit be contracted prior to
year-end,

Current status: Unresolved. The same condition was identified as Finding No.
01-10 in the fiscal year 2001 -audit. Through the multi-year Request for
Proposal for the Single Audit, P38 would b€ able to be current in the annual
agency audit.
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Summary Schedule of Unresoclved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002
Finding No. 98-35
Condition: The cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 relating to the July
1, 1996 to September 30, 1998 grant period shows variance when compared to the

general ledger as follows:

Total expenditures (org. 5801,
5802, 5803, 5804, 5805, 5807,

5809, 5810 and 5819) ' 5 3,549,779

Total expenditures per general

ledger for same orgs 3,564,365
§_ (14,586)

Recommendation: PSS should reconcile records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency and perform any transfers between grant years on a timely basis.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were made to ensure that the
amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. The
attachment ©of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference.

Finding No. 98-36

Condition: There were no PMS-272‘s relating to the year ended September 30, 1998
found on file thus adherence to the reguirement could not be determined.

Recommendation: PSS should prepare and retain all required federal financial
reports.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced effort was already made to prepare and
retain all required reports. In fiscal years 2000 to 2002 audits, PSS was found
to be in adherence to the federal reporting requirements. .

Finding No. 98-37

Condition: There is no SF-269 to prove that expenditures for second quarter
ended March 31, 1998 has been reported and filed within the required due dates,
instead a report of SF-269 covering from September 30, 1997 through June 30,
1998 expenditures was reported and filed on July 10, 1998. Additionally,
comparison of the cumulative expenditures as of September 30, 1998 relating to
1998 grant reported per SF-269 against the general ledger shows variance as
follows:

Cumulative expenditures as

of September 30, 1998 per

SFP-269 $ 1,063,533

Cumulative expenditures to

September 30, 1998 per general

ledger for organization 2881

and 2882 1,055,643
Variance s 7,890
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PUBLIC SCHOOQOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 98-37, Continued

Recommendation: PSS should adhere to reporting deadlines, I additionally
recommend that appropriate adjustments be performed in a timely manner.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were made to submit the required
financial reports in a timely manner and reconcile records for all amounts
reported to grantor agency. The attachment ©of a copy of the general ledger as a
supporting document on the financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences
of this condition and would alsc serve for future reference. The Federal
Program Office is now assigned to prepare the federal required reports. In
fiscal years 2000 to 2002 audits, the cumulative expenditures reported per SPF-
269 ties up with amount in the general ledgers and PSS was found to be in
adherence to the federal reporting deadlines.

Finding No. 98-38

Condition: PMS8-272 for the fourth guarter ended September 30, 1998 was not
signed and dated +that adherence to the above requirement could not be
determined. Additionally, the report covering expenditures from april 1, 1998
to Septembexr 30, 1998 shows variance when compared to general ledger as follows:

Cumulative expenditures as
of September 30, 1998 per
PMS-272 $ 1,037,846

Cumulative expenditures as
of September 30, 1998 per
general ledger for organization

2881 and 2882 1,055,643
Variance g (17,.797)

Recommendation: I recommend that PSS properly document the filing of federal
financial reports and reconcile records for all amounts reported to grantor
agency.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were made to properly document
the filing of federal financial reports and reconcile records for all amounts
reported to grantor agency. The attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a
supperting document on the financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences
of this condition and would also serve for future reference. In fiscal years
2000 to 2002 audits, the cumulative expenditures reported per PMS-272 tie up
with amounts in the general ledgers and filing of federal financial reports is
properly documented.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 98-39

Condition: The cumulative expenditures reported relating to 1998 grant per
Federal Financial Reports PMS-272 and ACF-696 shows variance when compared to
general ledger as follows:

Total expenditures (organization
2890, 2891, 2892, 2894) per
ACF-696 and PMS-272 $ 495,551

Total expenditures per
general ledger for same

organization 487,661
- Variance s __ 7,890

Recommendation: PSS should reconcile records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency and perform any transfers between grant years on a timely basis.

Current 8Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were made to ensure that the
amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. The
attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference. This was subsequently corrected in the fiscal
years 2000 to 2002 audits.

Finding No. 98-40

Condition: The amounts reported to SF-269 relating to the 1998 grant covering
expenditures from October 1, 1997 to September 30, 1998 did not agree to that of
expenditures per general ledger. Variance noted arrived as follows:

Expenditures per SF-269 as
of September 30, 1998 $ 1,179,721

Expenditures per general
ledger as of September 30,
1998 for organization 2883,

2884 and 2885 1,185,831
Variance $_. (6,110)

Recommendation: PSS should reconcile records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency.

Current Status: Unresolved.. Enhanced efforts were made to submit the required
financial reports in a timely manner and that the amounts reported to the
grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. In the fiscal year 2000 to
2002 audits, the cumulative expenditures reported per 8F-269 ties up with
amounts in the general ledgers and PSS was able to adhere to the reporting
deadlines.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings

Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 98~41

Condition: Variances were noted between +the program expenditures for the
Nutrition Assistance Grant per the annual status report (5F-269A) and the
general ledger as follows:

Total expenditures per
SF-269A (organization 2B76,

2877, 2879, 2880) $ 2,633,560
Total expenditures per .

G/L for same organization _2.732,552
Variance (98,992)

Variance noted to subsequent
general ledger expenditures 98,992

s =

Recommendation: We recommend PSS reconcile records for all amounts reported to
the grantor agency and perform any transfers between grant years on a timely
basis.

Current Status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts were made to ensure that the
amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. The
attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference. In the fiscal years 2000 to 2002 audits, the
cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 ties up with amount in the general
ledger.

1997 Audit Findings
Finding No. 97-2

Condition: Our testing of Accounts Payable Vouchers (APVs) indicated many
instances (non-federal) where supporting documentation was not ~available,
receipt of goods was not evidenced, and price quotations from three sources had
not been obtained,

Recommendation: We recommend that PSS implement procedures to ensure adherence
to procurement policies.

Current status: Unresolved. PS8 moved in 1996 and some documents were
misplaced. In future, extra efforts will be made to file supporting
documentation promptly and maintain these files.

Finding No. 97-5

Condition: Testing of opening fund balances as of September 30, 1997 revealed
numerous immaterial adjustments made to fund balance during the year.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding Ne. 97-5, Continued

Recommendation: We recommend that PSS only make adjustments to opening fund
balance when a material prior period error is noted.

Current status: Unresolved.
Finding No. 97-7

Condition: Pre-numbered receiving reports, inventory issuance slips, subsidiary
ledgers and written inventory count instructions were not used in fiscal year
1997,

Recommendation: We recommend that PSS improve internal controls over inventory
by wusing prenumbered receiving reports and inventory issuance slips, and
maintaining subsidiary ledgers or stock cards to facilitate reconciliation of
yYear end inventory balances. Written inventory instructions should be
distributed to PSS personnel inveolved in inventory counts to ensure accurate and
consistent counts.

Current status: Unresolved. Inventories were directly expensed +to the
appropriate expenditure accounts at cost at the time of acquisition during
fiscal year 1997. The Procurement Office of PSS is conducting an inventory of
all assets and is in the process of upgrading its system of accounting for
inventories.

Finding No. 97-9

Condition: The vouchers payable subsidiary ledger was not provided for all funds
as of September 30, 1997.

Recommendation: We recommend that PSS establish policies and procedures to
produce appropriate financial reports after the closing of an accounting period.

Current status: Unresolved. Enhanced efforts to prepare monthly
reconciliation/schedule at the end of the fiscal year.

Finding No. 97-10

Condition: From a total of $5,487,863 of encumbrances for all governmental fund
types at September 30, 1997, twenty-five items, totaling $927,037, were tested.
Documentation for five items with a value of 5135,529 was unavailable for our

review.

Recommendation: We recommend that management review the items in the encumbrance
ledger to ensure that the encumbrances are properly recorded and valid..

Current status: Unresolved. This is a document-filing problem that may require
changes both in personnel and procedures to satisfactorily correct.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 97-15, Continued

Current status: Unresolved. The Human Resources Office lost the personnel
details for this employee in the relevant pay period. They were unable to
verify the education and experience of the individual, which are the determining
factors in computing the rate of pay. The Human Resources Office will develop
computerized files for each employee that are maintained on both hard and floppy
discs in addition to the original signed hard copy that constitutes the employee
master file.

Finding No. 97-16

Condition: Prom a total of $683,461 of non-payroll direct expenditures, a sample
of 38 items, with a total wvalue of $95,487 were tested with the following
results:

1. Two purchases (APV #572077, 975329) with a value of $11,718 did not have
three price guotations or any justification for not having such quotations.

Recommendation: We recocmmend that PSS comply with PSSPRR.

Current status: Unresolved. This is a document retention problem. The
documents were accidentally detached and lost during packing and/or re-filing
when the Fiscal Office was relocated to the Nauru Building. Enhanced efforts
will be made to file all supporting documentation for expenditures and secure
these documents numerically filed in locked filing cabinets,

Finding No. 97-17

Condition: Of 25 applicants tested, we noted one applicant’s file did not
include reason for eligibility despite being above income guidelines; seventeen
applications’ files did not contain a signature on the review checklist; one
applicant did not have birth certificate; nine applicants did not have proof of
annual household income; and one registration form was not provided for the
current year. The Headstart program enrolled 497 children during the year ended
September 30, 1997 and had total program expenditures of $1,181,144. Dollar
amounts of questioned costs directly related to the finding could not be
ascertained.

Recommendation: We recommend that PSS establish stringent controls to ensure all
required documents of eligibility are submitted by each applicant.

Current status: Unresolved. This is a document retention problem that has been
exacerbated by the Headstart program moving three times in the last three years.
Enhanced efforts are being made to ensure that child enrollment documents are
properly filed and maintained in a locked file. The same condition was
identified in the fiscal year 2001 audit as Finding No. 01-06.

Finding No. 97-18
Condition: Of 25 participant files tested, the following items were noted:

1. One participant’s eligibility worksheet did not have an administrator's
signature evidencing approval and review.

2. One participant’s file could not be provided; therefore, eligibility could
not be determined.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 97-18, Continued

The Childcare and Development Block Grant program had total program expenditures
of $772,021 for the year ended September 30, 1997. Dollar amounts of questioned
cogts directly related to this finding could not be ascertained.

Recommendation: We recommend that PSS implement policies and procedures that
will control access to and improve custodianship of participant files.

Current status: Unresolved. We concur and have implemented standard operating
procedures under the Child Care Program. The same condition was identified in
the fiscal year 2001 audit as Finding No. 01-05.

Finding No. 97-21

Condition: P85S did not provide an annual report for audit review.

Recommendation: We recommend that PSS prepare and retain an annual report.

Current status: Unresolved. We have subsequently prepared an annual report for
fiscal year 1997.

Finding No. 97-22

Condition: The CNMI/PSS has not submitted an annual independent Single Audit of
the Nutrition Assistance Grant for fiscal year 1997 within the period requested.

Recommendation: We recommend the annual Single Audit be contracted prior to
year-end.

Current status: Unresolved. We have already issued the audit RFP for FY 1998
and FY 1999. The same condition was identified in the fiscal year 2001 audit as
Finding No. 0i-10.

Finding No. 97-26

Condition: PSS enrolled 497 children in the Headstart Program during fiscal year
1997. The enrcllment and attendance level specified in the Notice of Financial
Assistance Award is 559, which exceeds the PSS enrollment level by 62,
Recommendation: We recommend that PSS adhere to grant terms and conditions.
Current status: Unresolved. The Headstart Program did enroll 559 children prior
to the start of school however, attendance fluctuated and only 497 children were
in attendance at the end of the school year. PSS will establish a waiting ligt
and enroll additional children as soon as there are slots available.

Finding No. 97-30

Condition: Two PMS-272s relating to the guarters ended March 31, 1997 and June
30, 1997 were not dated and adherence to the above reqguirement could not be

determined.

Recommendation: We recommend that PS5 properly document the filing of federal
financial reports.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2002

Finding No. 97-30, Continued
Current status: Unresolved. Beginning the fiscal year 1998, the preparation of
reports and monitoring of federal reporting requirements were transferred from
the Fiscal & Budget office to the Federal Programs office. There was no finding
with the same condition was identified in the fiscal year 2000 audit.

Finding No. 97-31

Condition: No SF-269s were provided for audit review, relating to the year ended
September 30, 1997.

Recommendation: We recommend adherence to reporting reguirements.

Current status: Unresolved. This is a document retention problem. Enhanced
efforts will be made by procurement staff to retain documentation that shows
compliance with established federal reporting procedures. This was however,

subsequently corrected in the 2001 and 2000 audits.
Finding No 97-32

Condition: From a total of $683,461 of non-payroll direct expenditures, a sample
of 38 items, with a total wvalue of $95,487, was tested with the following
results:

1. For fifteen items (276505, 276818, 971608, 972013, 974190, 974193, 974903,
975091, 974193, 276544, 276505, 277161, 277434, 276491, 26311) with a total
value of $31,366, Accounts  Payable  Voucher (APV) and supporting
documentation did not have evidence of approval by the Finance/Budget
director and one of the Federal Programs Coordinators. Also, purchase
orders or purchase reguisitions could not be provided.

2. An additional seven items (APV 973449, 97564, 976833, 973381, 973882,
971682, 97217) with a total value of 520,104 did not have a purchase order
provided. BAlso, cone item (APV #975646) did not have an APV.

Recommendation: We recommend that PSS maintain adequate documentation for
purchases and ensure that the documents are safeguarded from loss.

Current status: Unresolved. This is a document retention problem. The
documents were accidentally detached and lost during packing and/or re-filing
when the Fiscal Office was relocated to the Nauru Building. Enhanced efforts
will be made to file all supporting documentation for expenditures and secure
these documents numerically filed in locked filing cabinets.
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I Summary Schedule of Unresolved Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2002
I IIT. SUMMARY OF UNRESOLVED QUESTIONED COSTS
Beginning Resolved Unresolved
Questioned Costs Costs Questioned Questioned
Costs Allowed Disallowed Costs Costs
Total prior years guestioned
costs reported in the
fiscal years 1993 through
19%6 $ 287,181 § - 3 - 3 Z87,181 § -
I 1997 628,546 - - 559,237 69,309
1298 491,117 - ~ 438,798 52,319
I 1999 169,426 - ~ 169,426 -
2000 - - - - _
2001 — -~ - - _
I Total prior year gquestioned
costs at September 30, 2001 § 1,576,270 § ~- 8 - $ 1,454,642 § 121,628
Questioned costs for fiscal
year ending 2002 - - - - _
Total unresolved questioned :
l costs at September 30, 2002 $ 1,576,270 & - 3 = 51,454,642 $__ 121,628
l =122~
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J SCOTT MAGLIARI & COMPANY
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Saipan, MP 96950

Dear Mr. Magliari:

(.08 THE NORTHERy,

E‘Q' M
& Q&‘{*}XX STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
B N PUBLIC SCHOQL SYSTEM

Commissioner of Education
Rita Hocog Inos, Ed.D

We are transmitting herewith our responses to the audit ﬁndmgs and recommendations per

your audit report for FY 2002.

We hope that the attached responses are sufficient to address the audit findings and

recommmendations.

Sincerely, W
Richard Waldo
Director of Finance
- cc: BOE
COE

ADCA
file

Board of Education -123-

Jephone (670) 664-3711/5727
S{670) 66437114717

wehsite: huep://sww.saipan.com/gov/hranches/pss/incex him
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